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Hammond, Surgeon General United Btates army,
July, in the year of our Lord eighteen hundred an
Philadelphia, in the State of Pennsylvania, well knowing that John W veth &
Brother had before that furnished medieal supplies to the medical purveyor at
Philadelphia which were iferior in quality, deficient in quantity, and excessive
in price, did corruptly, unlawfully, and with intent to aicrll the said John Wyeth
& Brother to furnish additional lavge supplies to the, government of the United
States, and therehy fraudulently to realize large gains thereon, then and there
give to George B. Cooper, then medical purveyor at Philadelphia, an order, in
-writing, in substance as follows: “You will at onee fill up your storelionses, so
as to have constantly on hand hospital supplies of all kinds for two hundred
thousand men for six months. This supply I desire that you will not use with-
~out orders from me.”  And then and there directed said purveyor to purchase a
large amount thercof, to the value of about one hundred and geventy-three
thousand dollars, of said John Wyeth & Brother.”
- Specification Tth—=<In this: that he, the said Brigadier General William A.
Hammond, Surgeon General United States army, about the eighth day of
 October, in the year of our Lord eighteen hundred and sixty-two, at Washington
' city, in contempt of, and contrary to the provisions of, the act entitled ‘An aet
to reorganize and increase the efliciency of the medical department of the army,’
approved April 16, 1862, did corraptly and unlawfully direct Wyeth & Brother,
Di'l;’hiladr.:lplﬁa. to send forty thousand cans of their ‘extract of beef” to varions
places, to wit, Cincinnati, St. Louis, Cairo, New York, and Hultm’lmm. and snnd.
the account to the Surgeon General’s office for payment ; and which ‘extract of
beef’ so ordered was of inferior quality, unfit for hospital use, unsuitable and
unwholesome for the sick and wounded in hospitals, and not demanded by the
exigencies of the public service.”
gpﬂﬂ{:ﬁﬂﬂ!fﬂw Strlz.—" In this: that he, the said Brigadier General William A.
Hammond, Surgeon General United States army, about the first day of March,
in the year of our Lord cighteen hundred and sixty-three, at Washington city,
in disregard of his duty, of the intercsts of the public service, and of the require-
ments of the act entitled ‘An-act to reorganize and increase the efficiency of the
medical department of the avrmy,’ approved April 16, 1562, did order and direct
that the medical inspectors should report the result of their inspections direet to
the Surgeon General.” i)
Cuarce IL.—¢Conduct unbecoming an officer and a gentleman.
Specification 1st—*In this: that he, Drigadier Gc_ueral] W 1]lljim_..&..llgm=
mond. Surgeon General United States army, on the thlrtm:'nl‘f: n:::%_} of [Jf;tnT er,
in the year of our Lord cighteen hundred and sixty-two, at 'i';r as nug?u.nI mf] +in
a letter by him then and there addressed to Dr. George L. bnn[frfr,_t ee -*11;l ' llﬂ
substance, that the said Cooper had been relieved as medical purveyorin 1-iiia-
- F reas ¢ Halleck,” meaning Major General Henry
delphia because, among other reasons, i 8 BT iohit
W. Halleck, general-in-chief, requested, as a particular favor, that Murray mig
T ia: which declaration go made by him, the said Brigadier
be ordered to hiladelphia; which dec 1 y T
General William A. Hammond, Surgeon [_mnm:u.l as aforesai ij“‘::-sdil éﬁl‘l}mmml
An additional charge and specifications P{'“f““ffd A2
William A. Hammond, Surgeon Gmmrql [:Iml:ed States uéul:) 5 N e
CuaraE LII.— Conduet to the Pfﬁludlm of good order and military dis
pline.” o e T said Brieadier General William A.
it 1t T e b, e cnd gl Gl Wil &
ammond, DUty 3 I : i orruptly, order and canse
ey tho el oekocpes andacing pureyor st W asvgion
Lenry Johnson, . thousand blaukets of one J. I. Fisher, at the price o
;lﬁtrélan ;E;lrgl;.iﬂlicai]:]ﬂ;; E;olt‘]i:ﬂ\'ﬁr&d to Surgﬂ{'_.;] G. E. UDDPE’I". United States
army, ‘JE]’E[HE“]- purveyor at Philadelphia.”

on the thirty-first day of
d sixty-two, at the city of


















B.

instead of the purveyor, as required by |

: aw, * gelecting and purchazineg”
blaukets, the selection and purchaze was : & Jritchasing* e

made by the Surgeon General himself, of
‘ Williau] A. Stephene, the aceused rfﬂ"m-s El e%r{icl:_:I:L:n::.Eclrsll-t]i.;i:ﬁﬂi;;i-
P- 2202 of the bill rendered by Stephiens and Company for only 1,100 pairs of
these blankets, with the certificate thereto af ]“urvnj‘ur Cox, dated
October 1, 1862, in which Surgeon Cox is made to certify that the :urt{clns
. Were purchased h}: him. This attempt to get rid of the force of his
pp: 170-"71 testimony must fail in the presence of a letter certified from the
records of the Surgeon General's office, in which it appears that the
Burgeon General, on the 27th of September, 1862, states to Surgeon Cox that
by the representations of Mr. W. A. Stephens, the account of W. A. Stephens &
Gﬂ]]]pﬂll:,:, nmnuntmg_tn about £4,400, for blankets “furnighed you™ [not pur-
-_::]mseq] for the use of the army, about the 15th of August, has been lost, and
. which letter occur the following words: “The Surgeon General therefore
divects that yon make from your records a new hill, which you will receipt and
gend to this office withont delay. If you have not the means to make a com-
plete bill, then transmit a receipt for the goods.” The receipt here ordered so
peremptlorily by the Surgeon General to be made for the benefit of W, A.
Stephens, is the certifieate appended to this bill, which is now brought into
court in order to destroy the testimony of Surgeon Cox. It will be noted that
it did not oceur to the Surgeon General, when he issued this peremptory order
of the 27th of September, 1562, to venture the assertion that the Llankets had
ever been purchased by Purveyor Cox. Perhaps he had it fresh in his mind
then that he had ordered Cox, on the 10th of July, 1862, to make the purchase,
and on the 17th had ecalled him to account for not having made it, and, lest
Stephens might not sueceed in putting his blankets upon the country, on the
same day had telegraphed Stephens peremptorily, to forward the blaukets.  Up
to that gﬂ}*, who but the Surgeon General and Wm. A. Stepliens had anything
to do with the selection or purchase of these blankets? Had Cox ever seen
them? Had he ever been advised of their quality, or of their price, unless it
was by the letter of July 10, in which Stephens fixed the price at $3 607 Had
he ever agreed to take them at any specific price? Had he ever done anything
in the matter, except that, in obedience to the order of the Surgeon General, he
directed Stephens to send them forward ! Perchanee, when the Surgeon Gen-
eral, in his letter of the 27th of September, used the truthful words % Surnished
to you,” [not purchased by you,] he was not fully satisfied that his letter to
Stephens on this subject, to which Stephens refers, and the reccipt of which he
affirms in his letter of July 11, 1862, had yet been destroyed, although he was
doubtless conscious of the fact that tha! ml.lrumzm&wﬂ:'nu did wai appear ?" -n:m;;]d
in the Surgeon General's office.  That 1t does not appear, and 1= not ol record,
is eamhliﬁlid by the teatimony of Spencer and Thornton,
William A. Stephens, the ostensible vendor of these blankets, and the
p- 1216 sub-editor of * Vanity Fair,” testilies that he has no l_nttcr? addreszed
to him by Surgeon General Hammond in 1862, especially in June and
p- 1217 July of that year, which are in his control. On cross-examination he
states that he thinks he reccived some letters from General Hammond,
but that he destroyed them. He cannot say at what particular day such letters
were destroyed, but volunteers to explain tlu_-. destruction of I‘hcsc luttcas b{l
stating his general habit, which waz not asked for, and although v n‘lunlc-t]-;c: a'iﬂl:1
gtated, is not and cannot be wade evidenee for any purposc whatever. ; ¢ adds
the significant words: “1 never destroyed any letter from Dr. _”“]“'“;’"k at f’tr;jrl
time subsequent to the commencement of the court-martial, or :1t'u:r AOOH, 0
was to be tried. T then had no letters from Dr. Hu!l‘llﬂﬂll‘fl 11 my llms‘c-'i-'ﬂ“i'“lr .
and addg, that when he iir:a]t lmurdi .ﬂllnl!ﬂl:]ﬁz:lllli!'l:l “gulllllii;t|f1::;3:1l;;ll I B:l::::nﬂlr;h;
then searched for letters from and to Gencral Tia :

p- 1220 interrogated by the court as to the time when these letters were de-
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and the facts recited in it show that it was, in point of fact, written in January,
_IB-EE. It is a curious circumstance that two of the bills should also be dated
in the wrong year, and that the great bulk of these blankets should be billed to
th:e government in the name of a person who had no interest in, or connexion
with, the sale, and whose name does not appear in the transaction upon the
records of the Surgeon General’s office.

Even if the subsequent rise in the price of these blankets were established,
as the accused attempted to show, it could hardly exeusze or palliate the fraud
upon the government, as it cannot be supposed that the Surgeon General was
gifted with the prescience to-foresee such result, and acted accordingly. The
owners were as likely to be gifted with the vision of the seer as the Surgeon
Greneral, and if this rise was foregeen, would not likely have sold on any such
terms.  In determining this question of fraud as matter of aggravation, the law
direets that the fact shall be ascertained whether, at the time of the sale, the
government was defrauded in the price paid or agreed to be paid by the accused.
If this were not the rule, a transaction in itzelf illegal, and. which would be
held fraundulent as well, by reason of excessive price to-day, might cease to be
fraudulent, becauze of a subsequent rise in the market. Thus, a purveyor who
ghould pay to-day for hospital supplies four-fold their known market value,
might, when brought to trial three months hence, justify his conduct on the
speculative opinions of men that in the mean time the price * had risen” to that
amount. But Mr. Townsend only “supposes” the rise would have taken place
as to the greater part of these blankets, while Mr. Paton, an extensive and es-
tablished merchant in the blanket trade in New York, testifies that there was
no rise in the blanket market before August, 1862, .

Thus the first specification, first charge, is not only proved substantially and
almost literally as laid, which is suflicient for the prosecution, but it is shown,
by way of aggravation, that this act of the Surgeon (General was franduolent as
well as unlawful. 1t is admitted that fraud is not to be presumed, but proved ;
but it is equally well settled that a person must be lield to intend the natural and
necessary consequences of his own act. 1If, thercfore, the proof’ shows that, u&
this transaction with Stephens, the Surgeon General without inquiry ﬂuﬂmi:
Stephens to fix his own price, and thereby enabled him, a middle man, t!lze pub-
lisher of Vanity Fair,and not the owner of the blankets, to take I'n}m]t e gov-
ernment of the United States $4,400, Fr ]ﬂth%’i la{;ge S“T‘I. ﬁmm 1'::]1::[:. L1l; dm ;f]r;;

i -orth, and more than the price of the blankets asked or {
fﬂfiﬁr; gilﬂm same time, the ]a“E holds that th-ia proof of such facts is proof of
the fraud, and proof that the Surgeon General intended ﬂlﬂ.tpl‘(ﬁl.l.]e‘tr. b red

As 1o the second specification, first charge, the testimony is briet, an Glﬂ- g0 l-
stantially as follows: In the written order of the accused, ::ui!- burﬁeun Senerﬁl;
to Purveyor Cox, dated Washington city, May 30, 1863, he orders ur%g 8

Cox, for considerations therein named appearing to him, among W t_uh

p. 61. are, ’l;hu,t ¢ Baltimore affords but a poor market n cumﬁmrmug Wll:l;.
New York and Philadelphia; that no rnln}'e | u?}‘mafﬁhi : r:dli rﬂﬁ“é{

in that eity without special instructions from this oflice. Ll
Etﬂ-[:':ltiﬂuj' establishes the second specification and ﬁrfi"i:I charge ; for, “ltti]m;‘%]]‘ ";i

s - 0 e he 1st of May, testimony that the
laid in that specification to have been on t is sufficient as to time; and
was done on the 30th of May uf_ the same year I8 8u T saad e

't is lai ohibited Parvevor Cox from purchasing drugs
although it 15 lutd thse b P}umhltbh ile tl }' der includes not only drugs but
the army in the city of Baltimore, while t.‘u. order e
all ot.hm'?r supplifs. the lat_lg'iu-!jgethl":l‘:ﬁ Ifi";.f_ﬂ;:":h';;ﬂ;%EE:ﬁh;}f el aj; }:Im
: at el i clal mstruc 3 : : >
::;;;E ci]ﬁ{]:ﬁz;}?ﬂ;!ﬁﬁ, the allegation i3 snhlatnutmlly_. s|1ﬁu1&11ef,‘.;f]11-::§11::e Di:
= : : f the specification that this order was made * ¥
may be the averment of the specifical e dolohia.”
to favor private persons regident in hiladelplhia.

= x 1] .I]ﬂ
It has been said by the acensed, through his counsel, to the court, in t
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?Ience of this order, when supplies ave needed on the field of Gettysburg for
the sick and wounded soldiers of

: : ‘our army, the nearest purveyor, Cox, at
Baltimore, distant only about sixty miles, is compelled to answer, “ owing to a
recent order of the Surgeon General stopping purchascs in this city, 1 had to

wait until gtores could arrive from Philadelphia,” an additional hundved miles,
before they could be sent to the wounded soldiers. Do these facts not bear
witness that it was the intent of the Surgeon General to favor private persons

in 1-"||il:1[1f:lphia, even though by so doing he should place additional burdens
upon the government for transportation, and subjeet its wounded defenders to
suffering for want of sufficient supplies !

It is the rule of law that the intent with which an act is done may be sh. 7n
by proof of contemporancous and different acts of the same character, It is im-
posgible in most cases to make ont the intent by direct evidence, unless where
it has been confessed, but it may be gathered from the conduet of the party, as
shown in proof; and when the tendency of his aet is direct and manifest, he
must always be presumed to have designed the result when he acted.—(2 Whar-
ton Am. Crim. Law, p. and sec. 631.) * Where intent is in issue, evidence may
be given of other acts not in issue which tend to show the intent of the prisoner
in committing the act in question.”—( Roscoe, 87.) Upon 1111:5 principle the
prosecution has given in evidence two orders of the Surgeen General to Surgeon

R. O. Abbott, medical director’s department, Washington, June 9 and
pp- 1114, 23, 1863, in the first of which the EHI‘EEPH Greneral direets that Sur-

1116 geon Abbott shall eall upon the surgeons in eharge of the general hos-

pitals under him to report, without delay, the probable amount of fresh
vegetables, eggs, poultry, fruit, &ec., requived by them per Imndm’i_nimn in ltkua-t
pital, &e., and adds: “The Sanitary Commission propose to establish a ma_rle
car running between Philadelphia and this place, and to furnish the articles

£ i o the hospitals " In the order of June 23, the
above mentioned at cost price to the hosp : oA
Surgeon General states to Medical Direetor Abbott, “ the Efnml;:lryl (..-uu‘n.nllsalﬂn
will be prepared on Friday, the 26th of June, 1863, to furnish the lﬂiﬂpl]tg.l E:E;
plies Thosc supplies will be stored at the warchonse of the .!I&rctm x[: v
Company, New Jersey avenue, to be delivered upon m-r]-?]rts of t 13 _su;'g:enanirm
charge of the hospitals by Mr. J. B. Clark. You will, accor m% :’t'u and
surgeons in charge of the various hospitals under your mntﬁn_d ;
heir hospital wagons to the above-mentioned stnru]mus? on Friday, an
e P T oy 1 finally orders in this letter, that
faily tl;ereaff'ger. h e ].‘%mgl"ﬂnh{}‘in“:ai h; Ih;: surgeons of hospitals from
i 0 snch suapplies wi L& - = e :
m? uz:ﬂle?-sizurm” Megilml Dire;tjr Abbr;tﬁt,ﬁtgst:ﬁ?; ?Il:’: }:gs ::;;E{Egu}i“]ﬁi :;-d?t;
R ot fnd £ o B, \ be cured by the Sanit
fresh vegetables, egzs, P-:m]_l:r : :S:c., 1:11:::-E ti?lmméinl:*mnn i E‘ial i :;’:]r;‘
Commission from Philadelphia, as stated by g‘a B Fiinh ek Gidee L
f | me it Uipoonglanan 414 30 SCES 'E“ ﬂ:lt':?fffmr? nuuuth:ar souree,” he
W e Eﬁ'th e Biupphrgf';:::m:rliﬂlfs ]‘11:“11*"]1?1?&(:] hia alone should have this
“EEEEHHI"J-]J’ I?tf_'ill{]l_':d t 1'::112{?"1. u]lll,'l that, whether tEE Euppﬁfﬁ TII(‘}' fum]F.hEﬂ
patronage of the gover : fficient or insufficient for the wants of the
at their depot in \Vnslu'ngl'lu:llli'-’ﬁﬁ Hll‘ﬂl:llt'e them elsewhere? This order simply
soldiers in 1:3:{;;:‘1]’:[:'1[??;;'.lq.?hulﬂ lmsl:m:as to the dealers in ]:'_%Iﬂn{]ulpl::j;l: f'r-:-lil
gal:?e ﬂln-]%an[;m{v Commission, as appears by the letter of the E‘-’“I'EED;E L“ET"?I ’
. by the testimony of Mr. Knapp, were to procure their supplies. t;.
i w"']! it Eid yrivate persons in Philadelphia is m:l.l'-l‘f'fst- in this order o
A u:h:alnrder of May 30 to Surgeon Cox. I'hus, in nrdm‘] mlﬂﬂ-
i 44, 58 mil to certain persons in Philadelphia, on the one hand, the i
cure a large trade to P 1 its express provisions violated, to the injury
of 1862 must be dlﬁmgmﬂ]fdltnﬁ' tin; siclf; o eunded soldiens ain the Hallle-
o th s 0 e bt o e o s pepl, pored i

L
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treasury of the Sanitary Commission as a gratuitous offering to alleviate the
sufferings of the sick and wounded defenders of the republie, are to be converted
into a fund for private gain and speculation, doubtless without t!le knﬂ'wl!?ﬂga
or consent of the good men and true all over the country who give their time,
their talents, and the weight of their character, to organize this tmb}ﬁ and bene-
ficent purpose of the people. Here I take leave of all further inquiry touching
the testimony upon the second splr:{:iﬂcnlinn. first r:ll:u-g('.
The testimony upon the third specification, first charge, is sub-
p-173  stantially as follows: Surgeon George E. Cooper states that he was
medical purveyor at Philadelphia, as alleged in the sp:emﬁc:ltiﬁn, from
p- 181  the 5th of May until the 29th of December, 1862, when he was finally
relieved. That in May, 1862, as medical purveyor, he made a pur-
p. 194  chase of 3,000 and odd pairs of blankets from William A. Stephens;
that Surgeon General Hammond, in the office of John Wyeth &
Brother, in the city of Philadelphia, State of Pennsylvania, gave him the order
to make this purchase; that he, Purveyor Cooper, was introduced to Stephens
by John Wyetl; that samples of these blankets were in Wyeth’s establish-
ment, and had been for some ten days before; that he, Cooper, examined the
blankets, and objected to them on account of their being an assorted lot, and
not of the weight and quality he was then purchasing for hospitals, and stated
that he would not buy them; that he visited the Surgeon General in the office-
room of Joln Wyeth, in Philadelphia, and there stated to the Surgeon General,
in the presence of John Wyeth, that in passing through the store of Wyeth, as
he eame in, he had seen the “ Vanity Fair man,” meaning William A, Stephens,
sub-editor of * Vanity Fair.” On this oceasion John Wyeth said to him, in
the presence of the Surgeon General: “ Why don’t you buy his blankets,
Cooper !’ and Dr. Hammond said: * Why don’t you buy his blankets, doctor?”
to which Cooper replied: “They are an assorted lot; 1 don’t want to buy dif-
ferent qualities of blankets to put in our hospitals.” The Surgeon General
said: “Can’t you make use of them?” Cooper replied: “I can make use of
anything ;" aud also said that he was buying a different and better guality at a com-
Ear&tivel_}' cheaper price. The Surgeon General then said: “You had better
uy them ; it is policy to keep the press on our side.”  Cooper said: « Do you’
order me to buy them?” The Surgeon General replied: « Buy
p-197  them.”  ‘This was on the 28th of May, 1862, at Philadelphia. The
next morning, May 29, Stephens called at Cooper’s office. The wit-
ness proceeds: “ When I told him I had been directed to purchase the blankets
from him,” Stephens then said “ he was zelling on commission for Hess, Kessel
& Co., and asked for an order on those gentlemen for the blankets, Surgeon
Cooper gave him the order as follows

“MepicaL Pervevor’s OrricE,
“ Philadelphia, Pa., May 29, 1862.

“GENTLEMEN : I, as medical purveyor of the United States army,
p: 200 by order of the Surgeon General, have purchased of Mr. W. A. Ste.
phens, ag per samples, 3,057 pairs of white blankets, whicl you are
requested to forward to my dirvection, No. 7 North 5th street, Philadelphia, Penn-
sylvania, payment for which will be made to you in certificates of indebtedness
upon the treasury of the United States.
“ Your obedient gervant,
5 oo ; “GEO. E. COOPER,
“Surgeon United States Army, and Medical Purveyor.
“ Messrs. Hess, Kessen & Co.” i

There were ten different specimens of biankets. The blankets were received
under this order, May 31, 1562, and corresponded in quality with the samples
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and I would not touch it. He left the sample with me i
. . : n my office, w i

§e?a&n3d '.l:]l'ltll June 13, 1862, when he a::umafl back to my ofﬁucyaml Elilkl.*ﬂ].J i::n';: :;
. ]:. l.’il:l ed to buy his blankets. 1 told him 1 had decided the first day not
uy them. He asked me to give him the sample. I did 0. He said he
Wﬂ_lll oo to Washmgtnn and see if he could not sell them there. That was on
Friday, June 13, 1862.” On Sunday afternoon, June 15, Dr. Cooper received
!:hi:: letter given II;IJ_H‘I-?L‘. of June 14, from the Surgeon General. That that letter
is in the handwriting of the Surgeon General is admitted without objection, and
is in evidence in the case. Upon the receipt of this letter, Surgeon Cooper ad-
dressed a letter on the subject of this order to the Surgeon General and mailed
it himself, in Philadelphia, at half past 4 o'clock Sunday afternoon,

p- 209.  June 15, directed to Burgeon General Hammond, Washington, D. C.

The prosecution put in evidence a written notice, which was served
p- 211. by the judge advoeate upon the accused, requiring him to produce on
] __ the trial all letters written by George E. Cooper, late medical purveyor
in Philadelphia, relative to the purchase of blankets from Wm. A, Stephens.
The aceused was ealled upon in open court, under this notice, to produce the
letter of Gan]i}er, which he failed to do. Surgeon Cooper then being asked,
testified that he had a copy of the letter present which he had addressed and
mailed, as before stated, to the accused. "T'his copy, which was put in evidence,
is as follows :

p- 214. “ PHILAVELPHIA, P'A,
“ June 15, 1862.

« Dear Hammonn: T am just in receipt of order directing me to purchase
8,000 pairs of blankets from Stephens, of the Vanity Fair. 1 refused to purchase
them of him beeause of quality. I can get a better article at a less price. If
%m: wigh to com{mnsate him for services rendered you in your campaign for the

urgeon Generalship, the 3,000 pairs you directed me to purchase from him
some weeks since are enough, and these 8,000 pairs would be crowding the
mourners off the anxioug seats. Think well of thig, and answer me immediately
by telegraph if possible.
“Yours,
«COOPER.”

That this letter was received by the Surgeon General cannot admit of a doubt,
for Surgeon Cooper testifies that on the afternoon of Tuesday, June
p. 221 17, 1862, e received from Surgeon General Hammond, “in reply to
that letter which I had sent to him,” a telegram dated June 17,
which original telegram produced by Dr. Cooper and put in evidence
p- 222 reads, “Do as you see best about the blankets from Stephens.” A
_certified copy of this telegram from the Surgeon General’s office is also
upon the record of the court, (p- 2345.) Dr. Cooper states further, that on the
morning of June 16, Stephens called at his office and presented a letter to him
from Surgeon General HHammond, dated J une !4. 1562, at W a:ﬂshmgton,
p-233 D.C,andin the Surgeon General’s handwriting, and asked if GUQPE’I'
would receive the blankets. Stephens says of this letter, “I don’t
think I have it in my possession. I remember receiving such a letter from Dr
Hammond. do not know what has become of it. It was in refer
p. 254 cence to this lot of blankets—the 7,677 pairs—in round 11.uqlbera 8,000
pairs. I do not know the date of it. 1 believe I got it in the post
office to my address in Philadelphia.” He went down to the office
p- 256  of Purveyor Cooper and told him he had the letter, and showed the
i letter to him, e gays it was on Monday, June 16, 1862, that 115
p. 1644 showed this note of Surgeon General Hammond to Dr. Gmpﬂf‘ 311]]_
: that it was dated June 14, 1362. Dr. Cooper, speaking further of this
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bill rendered to the government for these blankets, in the name &-']-I
p.323  Wm. A. Stephens & Co., is dated June 17, 1862, and amounts to

$35,314 20; and the order of the Secretary of War and accompany-
p.921  ing official statement from the treasury, in evidence, show that

835,314 20 was paid Augnst 14, 1862, by the government of the
United States to Wm, A. Stephens for these blankets, ;

By the foregoing testimony it is clearly established that the aceused did, on
the 14th day of June, 1862, at Washington, 1). C,, izsue an order to Purveyor
Cooper, as stated in the fourth specification, to purchase from Stephens these
8,000 pairs of blankets, at five dollars per pair; and also that the Surgeon
General did, on the L4th day of June, 1862, at Washington, D). C., as alleged
in the fifth specifieation, give to Willinn A. Stephens an order in writing, in
substance, that he should turn over to George K. Cooper, medical purveyor at
Philadelphia, 8,000 pars of blankets, by means of which Stephens illdu?&d
Purveyor Cooper, on government account and at an exorbitant price, to receive
of these blankets, which he had before refused to buy, 7,677 pairs, for which
Stephens received payment, at Washington, in the sum of $35,314 20. By the
importers’ testimony it is establizshed that on the day these blankets were billed
by Stephens to the government, (June 17, 1862,) they had not cost the owners
at New York up to that time over $3 45 per pair, which must be taken to in-
elnde all charges and expenses. By the testimony of the custom-house officer,
as well as that of the importers, it is elearly shown that these blankets had been
in the hands of the importers unzold for more than three months before the sale
to Stephens; thai various samples of them had been distributed, secking a
market ; that the importers realized upon the sale of these blankets, after de-
ducting the commissions paid to their brokers, and the one per cent. to Adolph
& Keen, only $3 89 per pair; that they were willing to sell them at that (Tnm
to anybody. Adolph & Keen, who, at the instance of Stephens, assumed the
payment to the importers, never saw the blankets, and had nothing to do with
the sale 0 made to the government of the same date, the Llankets being sent
direetly from the importers to the purveyor's office. When received at the
purveyor’s office they were filthy and offensive, not worth more than $3 50 in
the market, and were unfit for hopsital nze, In regard to their value, the v
best evidence that could be offered on such a question is, the original cost on
the day of sale to the importer, from whose hands they passed direetly to the
government June 17, 1862 ; the fact that the importer sold them on that da
for $3 89 per pair; and the further fact that a responsible house in New Yo
offered to duvlicate them, both before and after the sale, at $3 25 probably, and
certainly as low as $3 50 per pair, to the government. Unless the testimony
by which these facts are established is disbelieved by the eourt, the conclusion
is inevitable that the aceused did commit the offence set forth in the fourth
specification.  On the point of their unfitness for hospital use, it is clear, upon
the testimony of Surgeon Cooper and Mr. Guillon, that these blankets had a
most offensive smell of urine; also, by the testimony of Medical Inspector |
Coolidge (p. 1503) and Dr. Hopkinson, (p. 1814,) both of whom were ealled
by the accused, it appears that if these blankets, at the time of their delivery
to the government, had the offensive emell described by Dr. Cooper and Mr.
Guillou, they were not fit for hospital use.

It ips respectfully submitted to the court that this testimony, unless dishelieved
and disregarded, establishes beyond controversy the offences alleged against the
accused in the fourth and fifth specifications, charge first, unless, indeed, it is
held not to be an unlawful act to give to a mere middle man, the publisher of
"cfamty_ Fair, who at the time owned none of the blankets, and had no contract
for their purchase, the sum of $7,776, as a reward for inducing the importers to
transfer them to the office of the medical purveyor,

It was said before, and here repeated, that a public officer who does an aet in




25 )

the interest of a third person, injurionsly

_ affecting the public revenne, perpetrates
a fraud, for which, at common law, he e s

18 indictable, and for which he

helt.‘! to answer in this court as doing an act which,'in the laﬂgna::;]r; :}leuiltﬂtll.;
Arlflclu .uf' War, “is to the prejudice of good order and military discipline;” and
whv::h, in the language of the specification, “is unlawful,” and done with intent
to ﬂ:ld Stephens, t]:e recipient of his favor, to defraud the covernment of the
Uml:.e-:'l States. 1 he word corruptly is used in the 5th specification, though
not in the d4th, and it is submitted here that whoever, charged with a publie
trust in the army of the United States, volunteers to make a contract for the
government in direct violation of the law, or, if having legal authority to con-
tract, fraudulently exercises sueh authority, by contracting on terms prejudicial to
the publie revenue, and direetly in the intercst of a mere street broker, to the
amount of $7,776, does an act which is corrupt in itself, even though no cent of
this ill-gotten gain should have touched his hand.

It is a fact, witnessed not only by the oath of Surgeon Cooper, but by the
official letter of the accused, that he not only ordered Purveyor Cooper to pur-
chase these blankets of Stephens at the exorbitant price which Stephens named
to ﬂnnﬁer on the 16th of June, $4 60 per pair, but went further, and without
one gyllable in all this record to palliate it, ordered him to give Stephens.$5 per
pair, which would have added $3,300 to the profits of Stephens upon this swin-
dle on the treasury of the United States, thereby endeavoring to swell his ill-

tten gains to $11,000 upon this single transaction. Purveyor Cooper resisted
the unjust and fraudulent order of the Surgeon Geueral ; sent his written protest”
againgt it, as will be hereafter noticed, and spoke of it with such honest seorn in
the presence of the Vanity Fair broker az compels Stephens, when examined as
a witness for the accuszed in this court, to break out into the exclamation, “1
beeame indignant!” There was no doubt an occasion for the virtuous indigna-
tion of the Vanity Fair editor, when he reflected that Cooper had persistently
refused to buy his blankets, telling him that he would not have anything to do
with them ; and that now, lest the continued opposition of the purveyor should
deprive him of the opportunity to plunder the treasury of the people, he was
constrained to put his figures forty cents per pair less than his principal in this
fraud, the Surgeon General, had anticipated he would ask, and had ordered the

urveyor to pay him.
- 1 shall not tgkc up the time of the court in dizcussing the attempt made here,
by way of defence against these clearly established facts, to show that the gov-
ernment paper was at such a discount in the market, at the time of this transac-
tion, as to justify the enormous price paid to Stephens for the part that he played
in the transfer of these blankets from the possession of the importer to that of
the purveyor, for that is answered by the simple facts that the house ot j_I":mt,nu-l
& Company offered to duplicate them direetly to the government at 53 50 per
pair, and that about that time blankets as good and better, as is shown by the
testimony of Paton and Cooper, were purchased with government securities L?'t E
much less price. It does not appear by any testimony in the case in :i:"llll.l. in
of currency or securities Adolph & Keen paid the importers their 83 89 per i:l’:i“
for these blankets. Neitheris theforce of this testimony to be broken or E‘ﬂh
by the purely speculative opinions of some of the witnesses fm; tl{ﬂ -iitli:lﬂef t l::::
there was a sudden rise in this quality of blankets in the New Yor ilm;? -
after this transaction, Mr. Paton, a highly _ruspectthc EEII:]EI:HHP al:ld cl_’l}ii ;
one of the largest blanket importing houses in the city of New 11:*_;_ ,I:tht;l S Fi
remembered, stated (p. 1177) that there was no rse in the New York blan E{‘
market before August, and that, in October, 1562, he sold a better quality i

hite blankets than these to the government at fifty-five cents l‘ﬂ,r‘l’"“m]’ duty
qu:i and added, that blankets between June and October, 1862, had risen
Ewnn'ry per cent., showing that these blankets ought to have been sold to the
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United States, for government paper, at 83 50 per pairin June, the time of ﬂlﬂg‘
transaction. "

May it please the court, I would here gladly forego. any farther remark upon:
the overwhelming testimony which appears of record in this ease, of t:hu fraud-
ulent and corrupt intent with which the accused did the acts alleged in the 4th
and 5th specifications, 1st eharge, in the interest of Wm. A. btcp_henﬂ. but the
duty imposed npon me by the law requires that 1 should not be silent upon the
subject of the evidenee furnished by the accnsed himself, in his suppression of
evidence, in his denial of facts upim this record, and in his presentation to the
court, unexplained, of forged and fabricated testimony, all of which, by the
clearly established rules of law, are witnesses of guilt which the acensed eannot
discredit, nor the court disregard. The court will rempmher _t]m rule befurg
cited: “ The suppression or destruction of pertinent evidence is always a pre-
judicial circumstance of great weight.”” So also the forgery of evidence, © when
proved, is properly consideréd a moral indication entitled to great weight.”—
(1 Wharton Am. Crim. Law, scc. 715.) Bentham says that fm-f.g;ud evidence
may arise among other eanses from a view of self-exculpation. The court will
doubtless remember the illustration of this in the memorable trial of Dr. Web-
ster far the murder of Dr. Parkman, where letters were received by the poliee
marshal of Boston purporting to reveal the location of the body, fmd which let-
ters, upon the trial, were proved to have been written by the Prlsuner in order
to divert suspicion from himself, and were admitted by the learned cowrt in
evidence against him.—( Bemis's report of Webster's case, p. 210.)

The written official order of the aceused, as Surgeun General, to Purveyor
Cooper, dated June 14, 1862, peremptorily commanding him to purchase t_hem
8,000 pairs of blankets from Stephens, at §5 per pair, was undoubtedly pertinent
evidence in this case. 'This official order was, as is clearly established by the
proof, suppressed by the act of the aceused in not placing it on record in his office,
as he was in duty bound to do. Surgeon Spencer, an assistant in that office,
testifies (p. 1227) that he has searched for and cannot find any letter of the
Surgeon General to Purveyor Cooper on record there, bearing date June 14,
1862, in relation to the purchase of blankets from Stephens.  So also Frederick
Thornton, an employé in that office, testifies (pp. 1233-'4) that there is no
letter of rvecord there of date June 14, 1862, from Surgeon General Hammond
to Surgeon George B, Cooper on the subject of blankets.

Why was this letter not placed upon record? And how is its absence from
the records accounted for by the accused ! He proposed to prove, but has
failed to offer any testimony in support of the proposition, that papers had been
stolen from the office. The important fact to be proved was that this paper
had been stolen.  Instead of showing by testimony that the reason that it was
not of record was becanse it had been surreptitionsly taken from his office, and
he had thereby been deprived of the means of recording it, he did show by the
testimony of Surgeon Joseph R. Smith (p. 2088) that a search was made in the
Surgeon General's office, in the fall of 1862, for letters from the Surgeon General
to Dr. Cooper, and especially for letters from the Surgeon General to Cooper re-
lating to the purchase of blankets, thongh the witness cannot speak of the date
of specifie letters.  He is then shown by the aceused a rough draft of the letter
of June 14, 1862, addressed by Surgeon General Hammond to Dr. George E.
Cooper, (p. 2090,) which is produced in open court by the acensed and placed
upon the record as evidence, and which he identifies as the handwriting of
Surgeon General Hammond, together with the words “rough drafe” and
“record” in pencil indorsement upom it.  The acensed then exhibits to
the witness a certified copy by Surgeon Cooper of the letter of the Sur-
geon General, June 14, 1862, (p. 2093,) ordering the purchase of the blankets,
and a certified copy of the same by the witness, Dr. Smith. In relation to these
copies, the witness states (p. 2099) that they were in the Surgeon General’s office
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January 12, 186 ‘ .
the Surgeon G u:‘:g:-:lhif: El?jﬂhm ]EEH]EFMP* attached. How does it come, if
sl of elging o ﬁ-l:;:n t !E;I, ﬂ]_l‘ﬁ m'dE’r should be of record, that, ;n,
1863, =ce that it was imm.;-di,:;m : ]M:;i Cooper’s copy, he did not in January,
attempt to ecast censure upnr.;jt]]:e u]il ?FT his record and perpetuated. The
record papers that were handed him 11|t:“|]. trusty clerk for not putting upon
I Cew wid antibctony. e terly failed, as the court will remember
that 1 e e Yy answer of the elerk thus assaile B
at e never was “L]._u.t.__‘.ed for S faiban i ; IL...!'|1|I't]. Mr. H:-l]mmu_
s el vl n{-iii?.m-lﬂs, ure of the kind by Surgeon Smith, as
R i cver aring i v ;m:lh., Bﬂimalm. nor any other witness
E‘El'gl?un General at all.  The remark :::‘Iga : Ilﬂft o demdugonder alie
this rough draft was offered in evid .*' ‘IL y the _]lll]gnpa.:h‘m‘.utu at the time
b o cx oy ard inlm-estiuanL iy the accused is here repeated, that
ol UI};m 1lm? i::t{ll l.r_‘.’ to ]{-ar_n the origin of this paper,
hands of the accused, written by Lims .Il:_mtum. inquiry, the paper being inithe
court not ID'I'II}" have no light, l:rl.l.[?l'.ﬂq':%:;nt"f;jaﬂid' hrﬂlught h}' R Jute s
aceused that to seck for l?gllt upon this & .1 ed in advance by the counsel of the
b'lfi“g | it oty io :é‘ﬁ!]l?'llmt th] L “uﬂ::;;?r"r"{'m;}m uai:'lumﬁh tllm ;Int[‘mfllt

23 oA e ok el for the acensed had receiv
Ls‘i{ltl;l?t]:?f:;.lt:; T :u professional confidence.  While their statement i[»;z-1 nﬁ:ﬂ

e acensed, it is fit to remark, inasmuch as this s
f;taégﬂﬂ tﬂtt_! ]:‘{JE{;'I‘I.I Ih_}f the acensed, that ]n:I has -nnl, lIJ.': Inft;:fu:::u:?ﬂ:;l:rfs
unt either for his possession of the paper or it -b-:IIa‘ G ; z
records, or to show when this paper so pr ot Ve Lt o
i r _ L produced, and in hiz bhandwriting, was
mi:ﬁt}r tﬂu{'.u};:;.e :;tll{l:::lu;id’c‘lu original, how, and when, and where it came into the

It does not follow, becanse the counsel for the defence did not veeeive i
the hands of the accused, as they have stated, that the HIL'I.“I.]II:::IITL*IE: Ii‘r.: : f;'urm
did not retain possession of it until he voluntarily parted with .it ]:i;l;scli' :':" lmi:
P::;D“' OT persons as handed it to his counszel; of all which the connsel may E'I:gﬂ
:]_] : :'::&r:lgf [}m' lignm]'ant. It ‘t.ﬂ“l,d. certainl y be a wise diserction on the part of

enscd, after he became alarmed in regard to this transaction and insti-
tuted the gearch in the fall of 1862 and January, 1863, and found an anthenti
cated copy of it in his own office, as is shown by the testimony of iliﬂlﬁ:v::-
witness, Smith, to have then prepared the copy, as lie may have readily done a:
any time, taking care, as he did, to not put it of record, and when the day of
trial came place it in the possession of his confidential friend to be put into the
?:ﬁ;:llf; tl:.:.rﬁi t][:ﬂ;,tif;?' so that they mi‘ght truthfully state in court *that they
papers in professional confidence, and not from Surgeon

General Hammond.”

The accused stands before this court without eolorable excuse for his failure
to put on record, in his office, this important order of the aceused, which affected
the public revenue, as we have seen, to the amount of £35,314 20. Se, also,
his order to Stephens, of date June 14, 1862, * to tum over these 5,000 blankets
to Purveyor Cooper,” is not of record, as appears by the testimony ol the same
witnesses, Spencer and Thornton. It iz no answer 1o say that this order of the
Surgeon General to Stephens was a private letter. The Surgeon (General, in
all matters affecting the purchases of medieal supplics or hospital stores, ean do
no act in his private capacity; but his every written order which, like this, is

intended to, and does, direct the purveyor to receive hospital supplies from pri-
vate persons on government account, is an official act as well as an illegal act,
s whole transaction. Why

when done with the intent plainly manifest in thi

did he not place this order to Stephens on record? Beeause it would bear wit-
ness against himself. Is this order to Stephens one of the “other papers " which
have come into the hands of the counsel under the seal of professional confi-
dence? Of that the court are not advised, and the court could not inquire, be-

cause they were duly notified by the counsel that they w ould hold themselves
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bound not to disclose the person from whom they received these papers.  The
telegram, before cited, of June 17, 1862, to Cooper, is the only record made by the
Surgeon General of his connexion with this transaction that he could venture to
record, because it recognizes, thongh it was alter the fact, the right of Purveyor
Cooper under the law to do as he thought best as to purchasing blankets from
Stephens or from any other persons. That telegram, however, havizg been
issued by the Surgeon General to Cooper three days after he had given Cooper
a peremptory order to purchase, and three days after, in [act, he had purchased
the blankets himself of Stephens, and divected Stephens, as shown by the testi-
mony of Surgeon Cooper,  to turn them over to the purveyor at Philadelphia.”
cannot be nzed as exculpation, or as any palliation of the offence against law and
against the public interests, thus committed by the Surgeon General.  His tele-
gram conferred no new power on PPurveyor Cooper; and the Surgeon General
took care not to put into the telegram a repudiation of his own contract with
Stephens, which he had so carefully concealed and kept from the records of hig
office. If he intended to velieve the government of his eountry from this frand
upon its treasury, which was about to be perpetrated solely by his own aet and
against the protest of Purveyor Cooper, why did he not say in his telegram of
the 17th of June, “ Repudiate my contract with Stephens and refuse to receive
his worthless blankets 1" '
In this connexion the judge advoeate, in pursnance of a written no-
p. 918 tice, dated January 20, 1864, called npon the accused, in open court,
~for the production of the letters addreszed to him by William A.
Stephens, in relation to furnishing blankets and other supplies for the army; to
which call the accused replied, “ In answer to that 1 would say, I have no such
letters ; never received any such letters from Stephens.”

The judge advoeate ohjected to any further answer than that he had no sueh
letters; to which accused replied, “ What I want to say is, 1 have two letters
from Stephens.”

The judge advoeate : “I chject to all that; let him produce the letters.”

The aceused: “ I have none that relate to any transaction of this kind that
the judge advocate refers to.” '

The judge advocate stated in the presence of the accused: “I have served
upon him (the aceused) a written notice to produce letters of a specific character
from Stephens, and it is only competent for him to respond by bringing in the
letters or by saying that he has not the letters.”

The accused : «1 have two letters from Stephens.”

The judge advocate moved to strike from the record the words of the accused,
“I never received any such letters from Stephens;” which motion the court

overruled.  The acensed here produced the two letters from Stephens,
p- 920 above referred t) by him, one dated January 6, 1562, and one dated
p-927  April 5, 1863, and which two letters the judge advoeate put in evi-
dence. The proseeution then gave in evidence two other letters from
p- 937 Stephens to the aceused, the first dated August 29, 1862, being a cer-
__tified copy from the original in the Surgeon General’s office. 'This
letter is here imtroduced from the files of the Surgeon General’s office as & mon-
ument of the werey of him who i alleged (not proved) to have surreptitiously
purioined papers from that office. Surely, if this document had fallen under
his eve, it, too, would have disappeared, and if ever heard of again in this
trial it would have been under such civenmstances as to have forbid all inquiry in
relation to the custodian of it. Althongh thiz remarkable paper, addressed b
Stephens to the Surgeon General, solicits additional orders for blankets *at
satisfactory prices,” (no doubt perfectly satisfactory to the writer,) it also pro-
poges a new field of joint operation for the editor of Vinity Fair and the Sur
geon General, while it discloses the sad fact, that for this new adventure which
requires money, the writer, alas ! has none. As showing the intimate r-::.!atian'l'
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subsisting at that time between William A S 3
. Btephens and the Surgeon Gene
and the easy assurance with which the writer A i, gt

| approached the Surgeon General
as his patron and friend, I ask the attention of the ollowi
S i e st of the court to the following extract

“116 Nassav STrReeT, New York,
“ August 29, 1862,

p v In their incipient stages, in science, me-
chanics, and art, many great men have laughed in derision at the unlucky fools
wlﬁm were ragh and confident enough to usher them into the world.  If you doubt
this, just overhaul your memory as to Davy, Harvey, Fulton, Watt, Morse,
Erics=on, &e., &c., and * when found make anote of it.’ ~ It is not to be supposed,
therefore, that when anything presents itself to the faenity which does not run
in the straight line of precedent from Galen and Aseulapins down, it is to be re-
ceived in any other way than by the same loud guffaw ; and methinks 1 hear
from Washington, just at this point of time, as yon are reading this, ha! ha! ha!
Imagine me joining in. 1'vecome to the point. I send you the American Med-
ical Times, Mﬂ_}" 24, 1862, and refer you to an article therein, on page 207. I
send you a box of the preparation there veferred to. I came by it in this wise:
My younger brother has been in Halifax, and had his attention attracted to the
Mr. Lane referred to in the article, in connexion with a very extraordinary cure
zaid to have been performed by him of small-pox with Dy, Morris.  l'o satisfy
himszelf he saw the patient; he also gaw Dr. Morris, and he reports him to be a
most intelligent man, with an unbounded faith in this Indian remedy for that
dreadful disease. He at onze imbibed the idea that it might be useful in our
army, and accordingly sent me two sample boxes, with the request that one
ghould be forwarded to youn for analysis, it you thought proper, and experiment.
Accompanying this was a letter from Mr. Lane to me. 1 know nothing about
it, or of its cost. I suppose it could be procured at a low price by the quantity.
My brother i so sanguine about it that he wishes me personally to get up a
healthy caze of emall-pox ; to make myself a dreadful example, which 1 decline;
but if youn have any such prepared to your hand it may possibly induce you to
examine into the article, Mr. Lane wishes me to become the agent for the
United States, and push it.  This requires money, which, alas! I have not.”

The writer says, further, that if the Surgeon General should approve it, he
(Stephens) would endeavor to make a fuvorable arrangement to supply the de-
mand, and he asks the opinion of the Surgron General at an early day; n_:ldm%,
«My friend and partner, Mr. Hayes, will hand you this; # = % will eall
on you again, and perhaps you will be able to give me an answer about it throngh
him.” Whether any orders were ever issued to Stephens for his Indian remedy
for small-pox does not appear of record, and Stephens himself, who, of all per-
cons ealled in this trial, would be most likely to know, observed a commendable
silence on the subject. It is remarkable that a letter =o extraordinary as 1!153
ghould have faded entirely from the memory of tl+m accusv'rl, an_rl th:}t ]]H: 3llnu]
say, and place upon the record, to this court, against and in spite of t IE". 1rntqiit
of the judge a'lvocate, that he never received any such Italttr.-ra i'rnm fm.l ;

Stephens; for this letter asked orders for blankets as “ﬂ”'nfl l:’.vl:l-
p- 934 dian remedies.  The other letter from Stephens to the aceused, given
in evidence by the prosecution, is as follows:
«1120 GirarD STREET, PHILADELPHIA,
i June 13, 1562,

“DEAR Sik: By to-day's express I forward package, freight paid, containing
aumplc blankets s e geas
H. H, 203 a 232...1pr. sample of 3,000 prs., 8 pounds to pair, « $4 75 per pair.

¥

“DEAR Sin: At great discoverics

1 ik di
H, H, 293 @ 207...4 pr. * 8,000 4 60
2
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T wrote to you the price would be 624 cents per pound, or §5 per pairy
but T have succeeded in making a better arvangement, telling the importer I
thonght I could close out the lot entive, and he gives me the above figures ag
the lowest net price. deliverable at lis expense in New York, Philadelphia, or
Washington, as you may cleet  The 81 60 cost S4 32 to Import; the 4 75
cost about 84 50 to import; and the market is bare -::-f'. white blankets, and no
one importing. :

«I am perfectly satisfied the government will do well to purchase these at
the above prices, and I hope you will do go. I hope you can manage them ally
but if not, please send me to this address the order of purchase in my name for
the whole or part of them, as the parties will need this authority to me; I
trust, however, you will buy the lot. b it

“They ean be shipped immediately upon receiving shipping directions.

‘:'y'f_-ry respectfully yours, )
« WM. A. SITEPHENS,
“«W. A. Hammoxo, M. D,
“Surgeon General U. 8. A., Washington, D. C.

«P, 8.—Dlease notice that white blankets are not to be compared with blue,
brown, or gray—which are a drug in the market and can be supplied at 40 to
424 per pound regiment blanket. You will receive the package on Sutm:t;a;i
morning, and as I am restrieted as to time in the refusal, would be much obliged

if you would answer by an early mail.”

This letter, like other letters and bills of Stephens, heretofore referred to and
remarked upon, is characterized by a singular inaccuracy. While the trade
marks and numbers set forth as deseriptive of the blankets leave no room for
doubt that the samples forwarded by express, on the 13th of June, 1862, as
stated in this letter, were samples of the same lot of blankets, as is also ghown
bg' the testimony of Mr. Vail, the importer, yet the writer falls into the remark-
able blunder of stating different prices for the same blanket in the letter—$4 75
and 84 G0 per pair—and into the still greater blunder of indicating but 5 bales,
“Nos. 293 to 297, as containing 8,000 pair of blankets, which it is submitted
would allow 1,600 pair to the bale, and make a bale of most extraordinary di-
mensionsg, probably not less than 50 feet in height. Mr. Stephens, himself, in
his testimony leaves no room for doubt that he received samples of but only one
lot of blankets imported by Spaulding, Vail, Hunt & Co., with the trade mark
“H | H,” and the numbers 203, 293, 297, &c., and 8 pounds to the pair.
Neither does he leave any room for doubt that he forwarded the samples and no.
others, on the 13th of June, 1862, to the Surgeon General. After stating that
he had written to the Surgeon General that the price would be $5 per pair, he
says, “ I have succeeded in making a better arrangement, telling the importer I
could close out the lot (not lots) entire, and he gives me the above figures as
the lowest net price, deliverable at his expense in New York, Philadelphia, or
Washington, as you may elect.” He adds, *the $4 60 cost $4 32 to import,
and the $4 75 about 84 50 to import.”  Is that statement sustained by any tes-
timony in this case! Who imported any sample blanket sent by Wm. A.
Stephens to the Surgeon General, on the 13th of June, 1562, save Spanlding,
Vail, Hunt & Co.? Do they testify that these blankets cost 84 32 or $4 50
to import!  On the contrary. does not Mr. Vail expressly state that, as he held
them on the day of sale when they were billed to the government—June 17,
1862—they cost him in New York only $3 45?7 The court will not overlook
the important request of Stephens in this letter of June 13, « Please send me |
to this address (Philadelphia) the order of purchase, in my name, for the whole |
or part of them, as the parties will need this suthority to me.” Does Mr. Ste- |
phens testify that he ever asked Surgeon General Hammond, at any other time,
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of this court, against the protest of the judge advocate, his asseveration, “I
never received any such letters from Stephens,” now attempts and attempts,
in vain, by the testimony of Stephens, to prove that he did receive such letters
from Stephens, previous to that of the 13th of June, 1562 ! ‘ﬂﬂl_.'j" one answer
ean be given—that attempt was compelled by the production in this court,
through Dr. Laub, of the letter of June 13, which discloses the remarkable fact
that Stephens asked for “an order for purchase, in his own name,” of these
blankets at the price of only £4 60 per pair, while the order of the Surgeon Gen-
eral issned to Purveyor Cooper on the 14th June, 1862, after the l'ﬁcﬂlﬁrt of
Stephens's letter of the 13th, peremptorily commanded the purveyor to purchase
Stephens’s blankets at 85 per pair; 40 cents per pair more than Etthuns an-
ticipated. T repeat the question asked before in this argument: Who was to
receive the additional 3,300 dollars of plunder from the treasury of the United
States which was to arise out of this transaction? Stephens did not ask it ; the
Surgeon General ordered it after the receipt of his letter of the 13th, and to whose
account was it to go it Cooper obeyed the order ?

That this sample blanket was transmitted to the Surgeon General on the
13th of June is abundantly proved by the testimony of Cooper, who says that,
on the 13th of June, Stephens took it away from his office, saying he would go
to Washington and see what he could do with it there. Stephens himself
testifics, by his own letter of the 13th of June, that he forwarded it to the Sur-

geon General that day. Mr. Dodge, the agent of the Adams Express
p. 2021 Company, proves that a package was received, marked «J. W. 8."

by Adams Express Company, Philadelphia, June 13, 1862, received
at Washington June 14, 1862, and on the same day delivered to Mr. Harling,
at the Surgeon General’s office.  Doubtless this is the package that Stephens
sent on that day; and as there ave false dates contained in hiz other letters,
bills and proffers, before remarked upon, concerning his sales and offers of
blankets to the government, so here he could not come nearer to a correet
statement of the initials of his own name than to write it J. W. 3. BSuch seems
to have been hiz habit; dating his letters a year ont of time, describing five
bales of blankets as containing 8,000 pairs, rendering his bills a year out of
time, and in the name of a party unknown to the government. These repeated
mistakes or mis-statements may be the resultof habit; they may be the indica-
tion of conscious fraud.

In the presence of the facts clearly proved and abiove recited—the receipt of
the letter of June 13; the orders of the accused of the 14th to Cooper and
Stephens, respectively; the price fixed by the Surgeon General in the interest of
this eoncern being forty cents per pair more than Stephens asked; the over-
whelming evidence afforded by the literal compliance of the Surgeon General
with the request of Stephens for<the order, shown to have been in that letter,
and not shown to have been in any other ever written by Stephens and received
by William A. Hammond—we have the sad spectaele presented of the accused
endeavoring to prove that his own statement, voluntarily put upon this record,
that he never received any such letter from Stephens, iz false; and the solemn
mockery of a proffer to make affidavit that he had made diligent scarch for
another letter from Stephens on this same subject, which proffer the court very
wisely excluded and refused, because the acensed had already placed it upon
the: record that he had never received any such letters.  If none were received,
why search for themm? His denial of course stands until it is dizgproved; but it
is disproved as to the letter of June 13, 1862, by the fact that his own written
order to Puveyor Cooper, sworn to by Cooper and Stephens, as well ashi!‘:l

order of June 14 to Stephens, bears witness that he knew of the wishes of
Stephens and acted accordingly. While Stephens failed to establish the fact
of another letter on this subject ever having been forwarded by him in any mj.; I

to, or having been received by, the Surgeon General, he did state that
p- 1592 he wrote the letter referred to in the letter of the 13th, some days
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court. can lay his hand on his Leart and say that John C. Keffer, as he ap-

ared before the court that day, did not by his manuer and bearing appear an
lmmst and truthful man, and & man of senge ! Of course, if Mr. Keffer is be-
lieved, both the brandy and whiskey inthe West Philadelphia hospital, before July
31, labelled Wyeth & Brother, and which he examined, were bad, and the aleohol
of Wyeth & Brother, examined by him in the purveyer's office, was impure, and
was _llt:l-:lmwl-.-dgmi to be so by the Surgeon General himself, after examining it;
that it was also of short measnre ; that the Surgeon General said, in the pn:senge of
Mr. ILEWEI':_ this must be looked after, referring to the short measure; that it
Was exXeessive in price, twenty cents more on the gallon being paid for it in
battles than the price at which My Kefier at the time offered to furnish any

- quantity of a purer and stronger artiele of full measure in bottles to the de-

pnﬂ-munt.

By the same methods adopted to dispose of the testimony of Mr. Kefler, the
acensed has attempted to sweep away the testimony of Surgeon George E.
Cooper. 1 undertake to say that it is seldom a witness of the highest character
hag been examiued in a conrt of justice tonching so0 many facts and subjected.
to so searching and skilful a eross-examination, who has come ont of it so con-
gigtent with himself, and sustained in so many important matters by the testi-
mony of even those who were called to agsail and impeach him, and also by the
written acts of the accused himself coneerning whom he testified. The whole-
gale assault made by the accused in his defence upon the character of Dro

- Cooper and the reckless presentation of his testimony indicate the conscious
- weakness of the defence, and amount to a confeszion that the safety of the ac-

cused required that Surgeon Cooper’s testimony be totally diseredited and dis-
believed. In order to induee the court to thus reject the testimony of Dr.
Cooper the accused (on page 20 of his defence) undertakes to contradict the
statement of Dr. Cooper in regard to the request made by the aceused of him
in 1861, when he l'c{iew:d the accused as purveyor, that he, Cooper, should
recommend the Wyeths to Surgeon General Finley, saying, “Frank Wyeth
gwears, on the contrary, * ¥ that the Wyeths had no need of Lucm_nmﬂuda-
tion to Dr. Finley, to whom on his own order they had the year previous fur-
nished over $80,000 worth of supplies.””  Where, in this record, does Frank
Wyeth so swear? IHe testifies (page 2277,) © We did supply the government
with large amounts of medical stores during the administration of Dr. Finley
through orders from Dr. Satterlee, and the amount was between $70,000 and
280,000,  The court willl:jmtillﬁa !I;hnt' the ﬁlntf]muﬂt of the aceused iz, they fur-
i s supplies on “Dr. Finley's own order.

nm’ilisﬁathfﬁz argfmud says of a pr::':eut of whiskey sent to Die. Cooper by t.]m
Wyeths in Baltimore ix also stated in the defence without much reg::ml t;) :su:Lul-
racy. 'I'hat statement is that Dr. Gooper says he received a pre:tml:* L:En?ﬂ% .
the aceused of whiskey from John Wyeth, with whom he wm}. 13{_1& ln'uq}.l:zun ,
and that “Frank Wyecth swears, on the contrary, that the :.x.I:E- 1:} lx:. ..a“.:.:iu&:‘
signed to Cooper by them through Admms's express, uu_nl muuTt : g:l:lfumcnrd
out any knowledge or agency of the :wm:sud._ On what [;1;&1., uE -me:i :

doea Frank Wyeth so swear!  When as_in;{:d‘m regard to t e u,:cgn.n:: e Pi;

- he says he only knows that it isin the handwriting of one of the

l'.lpllﬁe Jgil-[-la;}iﬁ then asked, “Do you know what box is veferred to in the word
::IJED;’Ec-m the receipt?” n.;}ul mjts'“ﬁlr?‘]fxm*:i”:-_fmiltmmmilﬁ ::Jl:::}":‘ plr_::- :;Il::,lhh{ ';t:.:;
agne it 10 mf:m o i ‘:‘lb d t Ilz'm'n-.-+ uE‘ more than one box
stationed in Baltimore” “lc l]\i‘.I: e 1 'l‘u] i s stationed in Baltimore.”
Biarghiskcey that o S8 0 -:Dr' Lﬁfﬁ:ﬂ* 1:111'-1'; l::;: \:“i:h referred to in the reeeipt,
e Et%tﬁﬂlatlzfl'{lr;%r: ?:an{:zxknf whiskey, and only knows _?1' but one box
e ]mﬂﬁ:.l H:_';mper, how does that contradict the statement of ]‘J:‘. {.:t}'-'"r]lt:l‘ T'i'l'“-li“ Elf—
:ﬁ;g:?ljag; 152) “I received through Dr. Hammond a box of whizskey which he






44

further, (
iher, (p. 2264,) “ 1 took off of t
h 5 d T g el off of the requ . :
&?ﬁe';fg:frgshén]g*, and afier that T took ifﬂ"ﬂf lﬁtnjfgﬁfs Wi bk e the
: elivering the requisiti : : y take off the
ordered by the Sur quizition to Dr. Cooper, if the Wyetl
4 geon (ieneral : : e WV yeths were not
what the Surgeon Gcnemljtﬂl[faJnE)nﬁé‘} lt?l Sow Do, ek Viyel ko
qnnper'f The statements that Frank 15' eth, and what John Wyeth told Dr
lflﬂ hul‘l:}' » and not having time to ;e: D "F 'Eth told. the Rurgsin. General about
ing testimony against Dr. Coo I 1. Uooper, can hardly be called impeach-
Bk & wi L s per, who was not pregent.
¢h fime to visit Dr. Cooper as to visi t.hl e Had not the aceused
portant that he should see the contractor IL"' e Wyeths, or was it more im-
Anﬂtllﬂ-r ﬂllﬂ E[}nt"aaicﬁﬂn ﬂf I}u.l l‘I'ﬂ-n th&,. P]-Et?eyﬂ['?
putchascd of Wyoth & Brother.  Dr. Cooper soatiiel (o il oo e o
8Lt two Bills of 5000 oriaeas oa In funpm- testified (p. 440) on the subject
directed John Wyeth to put it um, il] 3 Eﬂil-:][ﬂmm of cinchonia, that he himself
from the supply before ordered P’a; ll] agked iy 1t hac ot been fumishel
John Wyeth said, «This 10,000 m?: n';em :’i‘nurgeuu General of 100,000 ounces.
was additional altogether,” aln'd w'lthltll?f;“ ﬂlﬂrﬂrﬂcrcd b, Jalh;andihe J00,000
ventures to say to this court in his Defe L{I:m" atgtemjnt An Fesare, tho scoped
10 orders to Wyeth for sulphate of cincho il Tl LoUpar, By e Do wars
A e e e Gl b ek L
e eddativg S { what he did say, and this only upon
PR ] m_his written Defence, his truthfuln ;
readily questioned. How ean a ; e L ess may be
;‘E‘fﬂmﬂﬂt &TF the accused aguiustuﬁmrn::::ﬂ:‘-]ri“iu?:ifg 11;1115111;1111;:1;2;:2 ndfalﬁ ﬂ'i?
e record is the witness of what Dr. C ; , -esentations
L Ll A ; . Cooper swore to—not the statement of
- . : per testifies (p. 335) that in June, Jul d '
1862, there were 100,000 ounces of sulph e e
) ; ate. of cinchonia furnished hi
John Wyetl . DA O irnished him by
N Hﬂml}]’lﬂl:d?z‘nﬁ:;iﬂlitl ;:il:-‘.ilal:nad l:eeu p;u'chaﬂcd by Surgeon General William
" Tebsmelin alul e Ell!I% mhti ;eﬂ?llnplzgt:tgbéﬂ( at ltE}::; tun;:.{and the
; : 2 i en - -I‘ﬁr . 2002
__bJ_'JMr- Farf', of the }musu of Powers & Weightman, that their house flE'uishe
to u]md‘-’_i"} eth this cinchonia, “labelled it with the name of John Wyeth & Bro.,"”
wrapped it, hﬂxeﬁ it ready for shipping, and delivered it to Wyeths at 27 cents
En ﬂﬂﬂ_ﬂﬂ, exclusive of the bottles and the cost of packing. By the bills ren-
ered in favor of Wyeth & Brother against the United States for this cinchonia,
one of which, dated June 28, 1862, ( sxhibit G, p. 334,) shows that Wyeth re-
ceived from the government 33 cents an ounce for this cinchonia, and {lm.rgeﬂ
additional for the bottle and boxes. This transaction hetween the aceused and
John Wyeth & Brother shows that Wyeth received of the government on this
gale no lezs a sum than £6,000 net profit, without any ¢mutln§* at all, or any risk
m:em:re::]. It is also to be noted }n:-rn that Mr, Farr says that their house
w1th_m_l that time (the summer of 1862 sold to the firm of John Wyeth & Brother
medicines to the amount of $150,000. Assuming, as it appears from the general
tenor of his evidence, that these medicines were furnished to Wyeth for the
?Eﬂillmm{%; :m;l put up at the same rates as was the einchonia, it would indi-
cate that Wyeth, az the mere middle man between the government and this
house of Powers & Weightman, received as his share of the profits, without
any expenditure, and as a mere honus from this government, on that tranzaction
alone, $30,000! This witness also says that during all this time the house of
Puw:ers & Weightman, the largest chiemical establishment in the United States,
received no orders from the government for medicines. It is not surprising that,
to get rid of the crushing effect of this evidence of favoritism thus shown to
Wreth by himself at the expense of the treasury of his country, the Surgeon
yeth by p , y r) ge
General should adopt the means already remarked upon, to wit, attributing to
Dr. Cooper words he did not utter, in order to discredit his testimony and

destroy the eftect of this statement, that this order for 100,000 ounces of cin-

chona in the interest of Wyeth, and to the injury of the government, was the

4 H
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direet act of the accused. Once rid of Dr. Cooper’s testimony showing the
Surgeon General’s connexion with this transaction, the accused might be able
to say, when confronted by the fact which is proved by the bill of record and
the testimony of Farr, of this plunder of the treasury by the Wyeths,  Thon
can’st not say I did it."”

I ask the attention of the court to the singular confirmation which this testi-
mony gives to the statement of Dr. Cooper, (p. 336,) when speaking of the
business of the department being too much for one house to furnish, referri
to the house of John Wyeth & Brother, to which the acecused replied, * That
when any small requisitions would eome on, to give them to Hance, Griffiths &
Co., or to Morris, Perot & Co., and it would serve as a gop for Cerberus, and
keep the peoples’ mouths shut.” Powers & Weightman were not to have
even a *‘sop” thrown to them. They were to be content with such reasonable
profits as John Wyeth & Brother would consent to let them have. It has been
remarked by the aceused, in his defence, that a very large part of the sup-
plies furnished by the Wyeths were obtained from this reputable house of
Powers & Weightman. The Surgeon General knew that. EJ%’Vhy, if he must
select the person to furnish this supply, did he give the contract and its profits
to Wyeth & Brother, as mere brokers, to have the supply put up by Powers &
Weightman? The testimony on this point is clear and conclusive. Cooper
says (p. 348) that when the Surgeon General gave this order for the cinchonia,
“1 heard him direct them (Wyeth & Brother) to purchase it from Powers &
Weightman. Powers was then standing by the desk.” The court will note
that the supplies o furnished during the summer of 1862 by them did not
amount to one-third of the amount which Wyeths furnished, as shown by the
statement of Wyecths’ account with the government, exhibited from the records
of the Surgeon General’s office. :
- The accused also says, speaking of Cooper in his Defence, (p. 21) “he was
buying of Paton in June, 1862, ten-pound white blankets, at 45 cents per

ound.” This statement of the accused is also in conflict with the record.
The testimony of Cooper upon this subjeet is, (p. 219,) “I was paying $4 50
per pair for a 10-pound blanket at that time, all wool.” He does not say a 10-
pound white all-wool blanket. On cross-examination (p. 416) the aceused puts
to him the following question : “You stated that on the purchase of the lot from
Stephens you were purchasing blankets at 45 cents a pound.  From whom were
you purchasing at or about May, 18627" He answers, “Paton & Co., New
York.” He also asks, “Did you purchase those blankets from Paton & Co. by
the pound or by the pair?” The witness answers, “84 50 per pair, 10-pound
blankets.” IHe was not asked whether he was purchasing 10-pound whife
blankets all wool from Paton & Co., and does not so testify. Failing to make

ood this assertion, the accused flies to another, and seeks to impeach Dr. Cooper,

ecause he caused a clerk in Dr. Murray’s office to copy the letter, which is of
record, addressed by A. K. Smith to Dr. Murray, communicating the wigh of
the accused that Surgeon Murray should buy out the old stock of John Wyeth
& Brother, including old knapsacks, &ec., amounting to over $30,000. Mr.
Garrigues, the clerk referved to, testifies that the letter produced by Dr. Cooper
is a true copy. Dr. Murray swears that he received the original, and Dr. A. K.
Smith says the copy is correct. It is more specious than sound to say of this
letter from one officer to another affecting the public revenue, that it is a private
letter. If such communications can be made private in one instance, to be
acted upon oflicially, however, why not make all communieations from one officer
to another, influencing and controlling his official conduet, private? Dr. Coaper,
assailed as he had been by the accused, owed it to himself as well as to the gov-
ernment which he had served with such fidelity as to compel the acknowledg-
ment of his integrity in the letter of the accused, to avail himself of the oppor-
tunity thus furnished him to obtain a copy of this communication. It will not
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do for the ace
; : acensed to att :
B consi . empt to cast dishono + Y
John ‘E’v![lil;”]‘; that it was after the accused h;dugr?:::' II:]r. i e }h;a o
army, a yd [ll & Drother, in whose way Qoo D o ngendpiay e
5 111;1;1:';Lril er{;hy rid his friend Wyeth of t]I]E :‘!T;:;l ' ':? e }]im o
: lering the treasury of their : uction to their operati
this copied letter v < e country. The court will A
] i x e note
his letter of Uciubzrhlgnlt;%g by Dr. Smith the Surgeon Gen(arulnhat;h:{ll:dl::fms
tells them to report “without to John Wyeth & Brother, (p. 164;) in sl
discharge of the dutics of the rneaél'}r ALl tha. eloogmassarices eannectel Wt 6
which you have previousl aerb;j;ml purveyor by Surgeon George E. Cooper
Brother are constituted by {he Sur - ”ﬂfﬂﬂf to me.” Thus John W}’ﬂthp&
1ir. Cooper discharged his ﬂfﬁciul%lm? eneral inspectors of the manner in which
‘Etill, not fully satisfied that D Igmﬁ' S
his defence (p. 22) that Dr. Coo r. Cooper is impeached, the accused states in
mith in regard to conve - Uooper is contradicted by Drs. Vollum and A. K.
B F b accneel; Briﬂgzzsh ) Here the record again contradicts the state-
‘FEI_'Eat.iun with Dr. Vollum: but [l)m 533:' 8 (p. 462) he does not recollect the con-
B B v ik B i et il.s rg_-::ol]i:ct the words imputed to him, viz :
e e Hiis tEsl:il:r;uu s ( ﬂﬂ;ﬁ id utter them. Dr. Vollum swears to
B T even withildar. -‘i : tupij Sl} that Dr. ?GDPHI‘ did say of the acensed
eross-examination, if he di r. Smith, Dr. Gooper was asked, (p. 790;) on
_ , if he did not say to Dr. Smith, showing hi P ;
13, “ Dr. Hammond has placed in my 1 | {m lma| S e L
there,” or words to that effect ; to whi:::rh lﬁmé the best weapon he could have put
having said weapou. 1 do ;'ememher ﬂf]: : hag.ﬂi[r]ler m}‘}[l;ei[.ll; y [1(}“ Iﬁt PHERE A
g r gal t -
given '[I'I.E"l]IE best recommendation, or aﬂmr:thig that WE:]. : l-1 g
the other.” Dr. Smith said, (p. 1701,) “I ¢ 8 y. I may have said
Cooper said ‘weapon;’ he jaaIij:.l t]mtjw 'iaml-m it ABESY WA
thing which Bill Hammond eould e bipell o thing he wanted—the heat
nesses swear substantially to the san .-Ltl e h“'r“ds' 'qlmc il
“yeapon” was used; but Dr. Coo E.-]:'L' 1““%. hm?er et e
1 + BEAVE i av 1
zu ti-a ere be iEr tflm acensed in mu]ﬂug tiﬁs 31:;1;:::1{“1.1;2 E:Egn:::; inxgi];a]%:f?::.s:
ntrary to the facts as they appear on the -'l'?‘ 0
Frank Wyeth was finall s e i
. v called upon to make out a contradieti This i
witness for the firm of John Wyeth & DBrotl i sl
how much money he refunded t{rj;he gm'c::m:ﬁ:: l;:dﬂ:ﬂlf? l(l:mi'h: 62, :I'umernbgr
quets, for which he had charged the gnvcmmcu; and ﬁe:u : 'dSﬁbEI hLlwh!ﬂl‘:"'mn-
had never delivered to the amount of $500—a mistake, he E::E;d; ‘l:lihwat 1':::i:: ]]ﬁ
Il'lﬁmhly veeur,” in which remark he is unquestionably justified as to his ug'nrn
0::3&, by thie fﬂ{g tf]‘]aE thﬁhﬁ.:l;mn fall, he rendered a bill to Surgeon Laub for
m, purchased of them by the accused, at just double the price contracted
E}r :1 1211;}5 ia ;:lur: witness Whﬂt; after swearing that he did not kno‘.l-.r that the bottle
ohol shown in court by the acensed was of the lot furnished by Wyeth
& Brother to Surgeon Cooper, swore to the presumption that it was. ':i‘his:l:wil;—
rée:tu; g:lj-r:; ;luitsggr. Gt:lnpm: shnw?d or .read to him the letter from the acensed, of
rto . , an said, * There is a letter from Bill Hammond,” &e., and
l::h:s %nea to I:EE Seeretary of War to-night.”  Dr. Cocper testifies (790) to
i ﬂlt the s?me mg{.l c;tcepll; the epithets mentioned by Wyeth.
gain : the accused, or the purpose of dishonoring and impeaching Cooper,
has recourse to his former statement, that  the letter in question was a ljri1?:t{:
lﬁlttl.'}t' at that!” Of course, Dr. Cooper, assailed as he was, ought to be held
dishonored if he ventured to whisper above his breath one word about this
wrong done to him, as he truly suspected at the time, by the accused, because
he had dared to be faithful to his ofiicial obligation. I shall follow this part ot
the t}ctencc no further, huu{ms_e T have shown, that instead of Dir. Cooper being eon-
tradicted by the record, it is the defence itself which the record contradiets
These words of the accused in his defence (p. 20) ought not to be overlooked,



52

for they are significant. ' If the court can, by an; ']ﬁb’ﬂhiﬁlky.'l djudieate thti
case on the basis ol what he (Cooper) has said, the accused feels that haj
simply wasting the time of the court by a defence.” Faithful and true words!
I assume that Dr. Cooper is entitled to consideration as a witness before this
court, and’ that his testimony, together with that of Mr. Keffer and Surgeon
Hayes, and even Frank Wyeth, establishes, as before stated, the first aver
ment of the 6th specification, 1st charge: That before July 31, 1862, W{Fiﬁ
& Brother had furnished supplies inferior in quality, deficient in quantity,
and excessive in price, and that the acensed had notice of it. e

The residue of this specification is chiefly proved by the written order ‘ufyﬂ

aceused, (p. 242,) addressed to Surgeon Cooper, which is as follows:: "ﬁit"':' :

will at onee fill up your storehouses, so as'to have constantly on hand hosp

supplies of all kinds for 200,000 men for sixmonths. This supply T deaiﬁ'thﬂi:t
you will mot use without orders from me.” Dr. Cooper testifies that, at the
time he received this order from the aceunsed, he directed him, as 'puri*bjm-:,‘ﬁ@
purchase a large amount of this order from John Wyeth & Bro., of the valte
of over $170,000. With these facts proved, as before sliown, in regard to t q‘l':
previous supplies of Wyeth' & Bro., with the knowledge of the accused, the

law will infer the corrupt and unlawful intent named in this aphaiﬁtatinn,'tuﬁ ;

“to enable John Wyeth & Bro. to furnish additional large supplies to the gov-
ernment of the United States, and thereby frandulently to realize large gaii
thereon.”  As before stated in this Reply, it is the rule of Taw, that a person is
be held to intend the necessary consequences of his own act, and that the int

may be also inferred from the eonduct of the party, as shown in proof, and that |

when the tendency of lis action iz direct and manifest, he must always be pre
sumed to design the result when he acted.” 1 also stated that the intent
with which a specific act'is charged to have been done may be shown by | jroof
of other like acts. In this case it i2 2ufficient to notice the fact, before reFE’n‘ﬂ!ﬂ
to, that the Surgeon General made a contract with Wyeths, during the summer of
1862, for 'oakum, for which they rendered a bill at two-fold the price contracted
for, and of ' which ' Surgeon Laub notified the acensed. It is further testified by
Dr. Laub, that in the fall of 1862, still manifestly intent on aiding John Wye
& Bro. to realize large gains at whatever sacrifice of the publie interests, the
acenzed made out a requisition to the amount of about $85,000, and ordered
Puw&gnr Laub to kend it to John Wyeth & Bro, to be filled. Purveyor Laub
notified Kidwell & Cissel of this vequigition, and thereby interfered with this
arrangement. Not long after thiz' transaction Dr. Lanb was reliéved az pur-
veyor. It fared with him as it fared with Dr. Cooper. ¢
T'here is another faet brought home to the knowledge of the aceused, which
shows elearly that it was his purpose to favor John Wyeth & Bro. at the saeri-
fice of the public revenue; I refer to this filthy concoction known as the “canned
whiskey.”  Medical Divector Abbott (p. 1112) reports this whiskey in the
Georgetown hospital and in the Patent {%Eﬁce hospital. It was also traced, by
other testimony on the record, to the St. Elizabeth hogpital. 'In his letter of
November 9, 1862, (p. 1190,) hé notifies the Surgeon General of the whiskey,
and afterwards sent him a gpecimen from the Georgetown College hospital, stat-
ing that the surgeon had veported that it had produced irritation of the stomach,
and it had been necessary to discontinue its use; that it was offensive to
taste and smell, and came in tin cans from Wyeth & Bro. The Surgeon Gen-
eral referred this whiskey, at the time, for examination, to :Surgﬁcm ‘%ﬁﬂ‘ﬂ
who reported (p. 702) to the Surgeon General, in January, 1863, that there

was a large quantity of it on hand, packed in three-gallon tins; that it was a

turbid, muddy, dark-colored, extremely disagreeable, and nauseous liguor ; that
it eontained forty-nine per cent. of alcohol and a large proportional quantity of
Susel oil, and recommended that it be sold; also, Surgeon Robison orted,
(p- 1198,) from the Patent Office hospital, that this canned whiskey disagreed |

|
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with the patients. Pury
1 ﬂil’: latter part uf{}cmhﬂ?ﬁ? Jﬂhn&u.n (Fi-_._ 1026-"7-'8 .
B ctober, 1862, th 7-'8) testifies that :
Cwrveyor Lanh, 1,2 thiz canned whisk gome time
ro. I‘l)]-"f;d il - ﬂﬂ gﬂu[ll]s in qu B }E ey was turned ov x
Bro., Philadelphia; that small quantity, all in the cans 1 er to him
RV nthiniias, ar th o miensttics ofif had ws labelled Wyeth &
qgceiyé,l : . that there was ¢ b ha been issued to the hospi
ol it that he examined it ;]'?ml laint made of it by th i
attention of the Surgeon Genera and it had a bad ador; l.hu,yt ]:u:e P o
boxes, cang, and whisk eneral was called to it: tl 4t thinks that the
about 300 cans, to = thty.* a]_tngetiler, in June, 151353 _m:} itwvas told atiauesion,
?E{'iusﬂfl. a2ent an “1.["‘%;:,. {;1 Eggtl:'ht ]':i’.} hﬂx[‘.ﬂ, wern Enhi ﬂ]:_a;hﬂz ]-_'IJ?_G? giill‘lmsl i]].
to have supplies; - =58) to, Purveyor Coo i 0 19, all. The
El]:mg_ f‘nrpﬁlﬂﬂ tihasuliigngi‘aﬁcﬁﬂgf is the order utP Eurg:r{:tu'::uﬁllﬁlzneﬁt B;Bam]ajr .
he order of C. B. Ba i m two to five gallons: : s May 27, 1862,
A el vteapou et (e RSl e oy b
Vollum’s previous order f;run"fﬂgf S th 0 to five gallons :ﬁ:i lﬂgg-lhmnm
ey on this orde 9 200 cang.. In.Juoe, 1862 : T A
E’ not intend nf:lz“n?}lfé"ﬁf l:hbyh}}"- Cooper’s u*stimn;l;? E’[:: ﬂﬂlgpﬁtig this whis-
ﬂ- E'hﬁu](] ut it- 1 h. 01l . P]_]_I; u[} the '“l']]'iE.k.E .! 'h . ' 0 2AYSE, ::1
fadnot heﬂn ]]‘-lt-t;i:l_ imself, and risk getting the mu@; ,ib:u‘ti JuI]m Wyeth said
Wyeth & Bro (p Eg‘é‘f E‘:gd whiskey.” He did put it “Plil:'l - told ulmhthgy
7 it gt e A b i allons of | K1 e )
e v o o o o
REETY » \P- - hus the e Ll e ill, ineludin
at auction, goec - e conrt will see that thi 5 = |
R o] SN e R i
Was 80 ro. ; that it - 3 .
interest, ;:da loss to the government of not less tha‘:l;; ot i-‘w, useyand that it
interest, and transportatio In thi s than §1,500, including fi
tions of his i ation. . In, this, trangaction i It A
bli 1& in the direct interest of Wyeth &I AR S0H 19 gl e bt
ublic revenue, he must be held, ir i Bro, and. to the injury of the
& ;B"I;lﬂl::- of common sense, to Ln,:.r; 1i11atﬁ::{gimfhe prilit i asatomy SRk
Bro. to defrand tl b oA nded  that result, viz, to
i whikey wjon W yeth wo ol e e ¢ T gl
to the government, as in th B ANER B jected him to the re -
The vain attempt IIIE:; m:dt;sﬁ of t;:m E:H-:wnu]rnm:lua-te. of about Sl,&ﬁﬂ.i}wmmt
i;‘*mfeﬂmr S bt to ahow that t:i:ia' i: ﬂuﬂi-;-ll‘n;ll_n of Doctor Woodward and
rom these gentlemen upon galvanic aﬁt‘g whiskey, First, we have a theory
arrive at the same conclusion, that it is ]':}2' upon this whiskey, but they both
the report of the hospital su s a fair article of whiskey, notwithstandin
1t P rgeons that it produced irritati X ' 8
t is apparent that neither f th ueed rritation af the stomach
has. deteriorated by r o B9ese gentlemen s of opinion that this whiske :
Doctor Woodward g; o;uz;?ni?litln 11;’:]?-;*.'[;]‘"E “;g in_tin. cans; it is also apparent ﬂlﬂjiz
4 year hefore, and Professor Echae}fe;t::nﬁl::?mﬁfd sinee he reported upon it
the tin cans have not deteriorated this famous ]':? k 35 4eptimony’ by saying that
&E:IMQEH are, (p. 1990,) “1 do not mnsiderﬁh:: rﬁs:':;:tethl]!e Fzﬁdﬁf ht?f&ﬁm
: eterions " and he alzo sa . e ol €ny i the can
great man }r' norse s kl‘r’ s he is most distinetly prepaved to say that, in a
i gkey, upon exposure Lo the air
as to produce aldehyde. They both air, is not so operated upon
e S i i e y both agree, however, that this has a flavor of ald
mJ;. m,ﬂi ! w!:&chlsuba_tmme Professor Reid, of Edinburgh, says: It is an ing -
] Ex = ¥ . 3 ] I m All=
luted wit?lmluc;]l]ﬂi il: ";jli'r}r tF SNAIAIRE and peculiar odor;  its vapor, even when di-
Jred WIthL. ) , affeets respiration powerfully, suspending moment ily, in
some individuals, the power of i t ) arily, in
the off: ¢ 37 POAWER.Q continuing it.”'—{ Reid’s Chem., 534.) This i
g effect of this aetive, polsom, [ even when diluted witl -t
wonld be its effect u li . with much air;” wha
think SR by ife, when . not 20 diluted, we may readily infer. I
g I:I PE:?FEEENt Reid's Eh%mlatry ia well sustained by the report of ﬂl{'& surgeons
e Georgetown and Patent Office hospitals who state that this mi
stuff produced irritation of the stomach, and 1 Btate Lhak: St miserable
. 4 ' sagreed with the patients. N
chemical apparatus affords a test of equal certainty with the ﬁtﬂﬂmth on sucﬂ
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a question as the fitness of this preparation for sick and wounded soldiers. None
of these gentlemen have ventured to take a liberal dranght of the preparation,
and thereby illustrate the confidence which they may have in their theory. It
does not appear that any one of them has ventured to take a drop of it into his
stomach. 1 should be sorry to witness that experiment by any man, believing,
as I do, with Purveyor Johnson, that it is not fit to be taken by either the well
or the sick, and with the eminent Professor Reid, that the aldehyde which it
containg * suspends respiration,” and may destroy life.

What cnu](lp be more elear upon this testimony than the fact that John Wyeth
& Bro. did furnish medieal supplies of inferior quality, and at an excessive 1pri«:.i.r:,
and that the Surgeon General, well knowing the same, did issue the order of
July 31, corruptly, unlawfully, and with mtent to aid John Wyeth & Bro. to
furnish additional supplies to the government of the United States, and thereby
fraudulently to realize large gaing thereon? It is the law that independent aets
of like character are always evidence of the intent charged. It is a fact not to
be questioned that Wyeth furnished this poisonouns whiskey ; that the Surgeon
General knew it; that it was sent into the hospitals, there to be used in drug-
ging to death the soldiers of the republic; that the vigilance of the hospital
surgeons detected it, reported it to the Surgeon General, and sent him a specimen
of it; that his chemist, Dr. Woodward, (p. 1130,) officially reported on it to
him, condemning it as “a turbid, muddy, dark-colored, extremely dizagreeable
and nauseous liquor,” and that there was a large quantity of it on hand; know-
ing all this, the Surgeon General covers up this villainy of Wyeth & Bro., and
that they may retain their ill-gotten gains, allows it to be sold at 19 cents a gal-
lon, boxes and cans included.

What more flagrant violation could be committed of the express provigion of
the act of April 16, 1862, than for the Surgeon General to claim to exercise
over the purveyor the authority set forth in the order of July 31, that supplies

" of all kinds sufficient for 200,000 men for six months shall be purchased by the
purveyor, and not used without his orders, when the law is explicit that they
shall use all supplies upon the requisition of any medical officer, in cases of
emergency !

Upon the seventh specification, first charge, the testimony is very conclugive
of the same intent on the part of the aceused to faver Wyeth, regardless of the
express provisions of the law therein recited and of the interests of the publie.
1 5::.11 not waste time upon the suggestion of the aceused in his defence, (p. 45,)
that this specification would he defective on demurrer at common law. 1pdiE'Er
with him in opinion on the point that it charges several offences; it ch
but one offence. I beg leave to say on thiz point, made by the accused, that
mere “ technical objections are not admitted by courts-martial, save when they
appear essential to abstract justice.”—(Simmons on C. M., 214.) That the ac-
ensed did issue the order to Wyeth for 40,000 cans of their extract of beef, as
stated in this specification, is shown by the record, (p. 283.) This specification,
like the others under the first and second charges, involves a wviolation of the
act of April 16, 1862, and the court are asked by the accused to say that the
Surgeon General, notwithstanding the express provisions of that act, may take
into his hands the whole business of seleeting, purchasing, fixing the price, and
~determining the issue and destination of all medical supplies and hospital stores
of every kind. This would be simply to repeal the act, defeat its purpose, and put
this immense patronage into the hands of a single officer, without even requiri
from him bond and security for the faithful performance of the duty. If the
court find that this order and purchase was simply a violation of the law, they
will find the specification true, except as to the allegation of corrupt intent, and
the other allegations of quality, and that it was not needed. But can the court,

E in view of the overwhelming testimony against the accused in regard to this

. beef extract, fail to find that this was a corrupt transaction? It is in evidence
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in the testimony of Purveyors Brinton, Perin, and Murray that it would spail,
and had spoiled.  The court will not forget the suggestion of Dr. Murray to the ac-
cused that it would be well to allow the manufacturers to retain their supplies of

this articleat their own rigk, and issue them unH' upon orders as the government

may need them. That this supply wasnotneeded by the public service is apparent

from the disposition made of it. “When it was sent to Dr. Satterlee, in New York,
he inquired, as he testifies, of the Surgeon General what was to be done with it,
and also what should be the quantity

: in each ean; to which latter inquiry he
received no reply, but he was advised to send it with the supply which had been

sent to Portsmouth Grove, Rhode Island, to Hilton Head, South Carolina, in
search of somebody to eat it. Purveyor Johnson testifies that 10,000 cans of this
extract of beef remain on his hands to this day. Acting Purveyor Creamer testifies
that of this order there remained on his hands at St. Louis, up to March, 1864,
4,000 cans ordered and purchased by the accused in 1862, It is not probable
that it is now fit for either field or hospital use. Purveyor Rittenhouse states
that there now remains of this beef, sent on this order to his predecessor, Dr. Perin,
at Cincinnati, Ohio, some 8,500 cans. Issuing it at the rate at which it has been
gince it was received by Purveyor Rittenhouse, it will take him about seven years
to exhaust his supply. These facts would scem to establish very plainly the
other allegation in the specification that this supply was not demanded by the
exigencies of the public service.” The court will notice that Dr. Cooper testi-
fies that he purchased (p. 304) that fall, upon the orders and telegrams of the
Surgeon General, some 46,200 cans of this extract of beef, in addition to what
‘the Surgeon General purchased himself; and Dr. }Illrﬁ;lj" testifies that day after
day he received order upon order from the Surgeon General to purchase this
extract of beef, until the accused exhausted the business by ordering him to |
urchase all that Wyeth had. There is no possible apology or excuse for this
¥av0ritism. There is no testimony in the case showing that the extracts of
Tilden, Tourtillot, or Martinas, of New Yl?l‘k. could not have hEE!'l fun]ushlzddaﬂ
readily as Wyeth’s in any quantity in which the government ml?lhl m.ﬂE £ !f-
gired. Mur. Coleman, called by the aceused, testifies to the excellence l“'h'tgs
beef extract which he was manufacturing_in 136:‘2', and wlu::h ;1113 Eé.' 1!1 i :
to the Surgeon General, who did not deem it expedient to favor Mr. Colema
i fit for the sick and wounded in
as a manufacturer at all. That it was un . el
hospitals is established by the general tenor of all the tﬂst;rlmﬂnly 1_li|l i
The only apology or excuse for ever using it ut}mspﬂztlﬂ 18 clnil I{lilﬁtult'tn
there be such, where fresh beef cannot be obtained. Tt woul <heigior:
find such a condition of things within the limits of this cuunt;*_',: W “?I:miI oot
nent hospitals of the United States are established. II;"‘-PH“E_ ‘:;‘5 e <
before, that if this was done in the interest of Wyeth & 11~n lll].:t fhe o
fice or to the prejudice of the public revenue, I:hc_ accused mus l e
intended that result, and thus it results that the actis a ﬁjﬁ“d upon the g“t‘;::l"“uf i
and therefore corrupt, and being corrupt, even ““"“Efl_lllg 1;]1‘3 ;‘ﬁs‘:ﬂl’ st
B o s e i o et LY e e i
urveyors in his own hands and be 3 _
;];‘;f;] and {nspiml stores for the army, it wonld be an 11m]3:|.\_ lf"rl;t{:{l.ﬂf id iy
The eighth specification, first _c]mrgfr, ﬁ"'agea.thm:. tn m::s .crgt' the act of April
of the interests of the public serviee, mf-!d‘?fri]ﬂﬂ ieé%l;nr.}?:dpwd et
16, 1562, the accused, atLIchm::;]I thclls]tt {::-F iﬂ:eir ;napga;:;,in11s drcet 1o the: Sarein
inspectors should report the rLM‘;:S{‘ﬂ e iehed by the War Department
fmeral © Tho 2o 0 e ‘:1 g ; :1' il lEll 1862 nnlf three days after it was
in General Orders No. 43, (p. 2.31{]’} ety “f{' ail concerned ;" thereby
-ed by the President, “for the information © . fir e ahel
approved by the sonl department that all preceding
ifyine all officers of the medical dep : SR R A (S
lend i g fli ith the provisions of Order No. 43 we Pe L
regulations in conflict bifigz I War Department 138 evidenced hF tho
That such was the manifest intent of the War Dep
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order of the Secretary of War, (p. 1842,) July 29, 1863, directing Medical In-
spector A. C. Hamlin to inform the department, without delay, what reports he
had made to the Medical Ingpector General in obedience to section three of the act
of April 16, 1862, and General Orders No. 43; and by the order of 151113 Seeretary
of “l:ar. August 5, 1863, to the Surgeon General, stating that notice ha_.d come
to the department that he had furnished medical inspectors with printed instruc-
tious requiring them to veport the result of their inspections direct to the Sur-
@eon General, in which order the Secretary directs the accused to furnigh him
a copy of those instructions. The aceused accordingly furnished the Secre

of War a printed form, signed W, A. Hammond, Surgeon General United States
army, bearing no date, (p. 638,) in which instructions (p. 6) is the following :
“The medical inspectors will report the result of such inspeetions direct to the
Surgeon General.”” On the 7th of August, 1863, the Surgeon General furnizhes
to the Secretary these instructions, in obedience to the order of the War Depart-
ment, accompanied with his statement that they were issued in February, 1863,
and further stated that no regulations caleulated to give effect to the 3d section of
the act of April 16, 1862, requiring reports to be made to the Medical Ingpeetor
(teneral had been issned. If the Surgeon General had the power, and was really
exerciging it in good faith, to issue these instructions or regulations in February,
1863, in direct violation of the letter of the law, how does it come that it bears
no date, and that it was managed with such secrecy that it did not come to the
knowledge of the War Department until the 5th of August, 1863, a period of
gix months !  If he had the power to issue this order or regulation, what good
reason was there that he should not have followed the letter of the law, and gaid,
as did his board detailed to preseribe regulations reported in 1862, * that the medi-
cal inspectors should report direetly to the Medical Inspector General.” This
order furnishes direct evidence that the Surgeon General intended to sweep
~ away all the checks and balances which had been wisely provided in the act of
April 16, 1862, for the administration of the medical department.  As we have
seen, he interferes with every provision of the 5th seetion preseribing the duties
of medieal purveyors, and assumes to himself, in direct violation of law, the
right to =say where purchases shall be made, from whom purchases shall be
made, at what prices purchases shall be made, and what particular article or
articles shall be purchased ; and having thus assumed all this power for himself,
he goes still further and assumes to say when the issues of supplies ghall be
made, and that they shall not be made without his order, for, if he had the
power claimed to make and to execute the order issued by him July 31, 1862,
over that amount of supplies in the hands of a purveyor purchased upon his own
order, he has the like power over all supplies in the hands of all the purveyors
in the United States. Having, by this interference, prohibited the purchase of
Euﬂﬂifza in Baltimore, increasing thereby the distance in transportation to the
field of Gettysburg one hundred miles, and causing a ]am-::ntnb?e deficiency in
supplies for the wants of the sick and wounded =oldiers upon that field, what
was more natural than that it should oceur to him that the survest way to exer-
cise this power with safety would be to provide, as he did by this order of
February, that the medical inspectors ghould report the result of their inspec-
tions in field and hospital and upon transports directly to himself, so that if the
supplies which he had thus purchased upon a system of favoritism, and in the
interest of private persons, were defective in quantity or deficient in quality, he
would be the keeper of his own secrets?  How much wiser the provision of the
law that he shall gimply direct the purveyors at the different points what amount
of supplies, according to the standard supply table, are needed, and leave them to
purchase all medical and hospital supplies, as they are charged by the law to do,
upon the best terms possible in open market, not interfering with them in the
selections or in the determination of the prices, but requiring them. according to
the regulations, to make reports to him of the purchases they so make, showing the
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the best of his recollection, and that he never, to his recollection, made any com-
munication to him orally, at any time, upon this subject. DBut one word need
be said in regard to this testimony, and that is, it elearly proves that the state:
ment of the accused, in hiz letter of the 13th of October, “that :Ha]lenk_ra-
quested, as a particular favor, that Murray might be ordered to Philadelphia,”
was false. No further answer is required to the arguments of the accused upon
the words of Major General Halleck, “'To the best of my recollection, I did
not,” than this, that no witness testifies to any fact save by his recollection, and
the surest of all human testimony is that which is verified as the best of the
witness's recollection. The words of Major General Halleck, communieated to
the accused, that * Dr. Murray wishes to be transferred to castern hospital duty,”
cannot be construed into any possible excuse for or palliation of the statement
of the accused that Major General “ Halleck requested, as a particular favor,
that Murray might be ordered to Philadelphia.”” That this letter was dictated
in the spirit of deceit and falsehood is manifest from the fact that on the 9th of
October, 1862, the accused requested (p. 719) the assignment of Surgeon A. K.
Smith, United States army, to relieve Surgeon Cooper, as medical purveyor in
Philadelphia, the latter on being relieved to proceed to headquarters General
Buell’s army, and relieve Surgeon Robert Murray, as medieal director of that
army, coupled with the further fact that by his letter to the Seeretary of War, of
date October 18, 1862, (p. 720,) the accused says: 1 have for some time contem-
lated recommending that Dr. Cooper be relieved from duty as medical purveyor.
is manner and disposition are such as altogether unfit him for the performance
of his official duties in a proper manner. Complaints in regard to him have been
numerous, and I have seen enough to convince me that a mistake was committed
in assigning him to duty as purveyor.” How does this language, * 1 have for
some time contemplated recommending that Dr. Cooper be relieved,” and this
urging of his unfitness for his position, agree with the statements of his letter to
Dr. Cooper, * It was with very great reluctance, even with pain, that I made
the detail. . y " " * * . i
I believe the change would have been made over my head had I not made it
myself. That is one reason, and the second iz more imperative. Halleck re-
guestﬁ{l that Murray might be ordered to Philadelphia?”  Apparently appre-
ensive that the removal of Surgeon Cooper to the headquarters of (eneral
Buell’s army might not be made, and, notwithstanding the  pain ” that it caused
him, the ﬂEEHEEE persisted, by another letter, damg October 20, 1862, to the
Seeretary of War, in urging the removal of Dr. Cooper, and said : *In addition
to the general statements in regard to Dr. Cooper’s unfitness to perform the duties
of medical purveyor, contained in the letter of the 18th instant, I have the
honor to submit the following specific reasons for his removal ; 1st. Dr. Cooper
is 80 abusive and profane in his language to surgeons and others who come to
his office. * * * 2d. He allowed his office to be a place of rendezvous for
dealers, from whom he purchased supplies to such an extent as to excite com-
ment.

“ For these reasons 1 thought it best to relieve Surgeon Murray by Surgeon
Cooper. Nothing official is known in the office relative to any want of integrity
of Dr. Cooper, nor do I believe ke is at all deficient in honesty. He ig, how-
ever, an officer who, I think, it would be inexpedient to retain in a place where
courtesy and urbanity are so indispensably necessary, and I therefore respect-

Sully request that the orders in his case be allowed to take their course”” Here
it is apparent that the imperative reason for Dr.Cooper's removal is not because
General Halleck requests it as a particular favor, but because the acenszed de-
sired it. The accused confesses himself, in hiz letter of the 20th, that for the
reasons therein assigned, he thought it best to relieve Surgeon Murray by Sur-
geon Cooper, General Halleck's request is not one of these reasonz. It was
on the 18th of October, 1862, two days before the Surgeon General wrote this
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letter to the Secretary of War, urging the removal of Dr. Cooper, but admitting
his integrity, that he addressed his letter to John Wyeth & ﬁrnthm'. (p. 154,)
before referred to, asking a report of the circumstances of Dy, Cooper’s official
conduct which the

had previously rerbally reported to him. The very fact
that on the same day when he was addressing hiz first letter to the Secretary
of War, urging that the order for Surgeon Cooper might be allowed to take ifs
course, he was addressing his note to John Wyeth, asking for a written
statement of his former verbal communications touching Dr. Cooper’s official
conduct, indicates a stronger and more imperative reason impelling him to the
removal of Dr. Cooper, than that assigned in his letter of the 13th, which is
made the subject of the specification under the second charge. He comes to
bear witness, by these several letters, that the assignment of the reason, as stated
in the specification, viz: General Halleck’s request, was not only untrue, as
appears by the letter of General Halleck addressed to him and given in evi-
dence, but that his statement of the 13th was designed to deceive Dr. Cooper
as to his motives, and suppress all purpose on the part of Cooper to dgmand an
inquiry into the canses l:-l!] II:'IiE removal as well as into the official conduet of the
Surgeon General, which had more than once before that been the subject of
hopest and faithful remonstrance from Surgeon Cooper. : ey
Charge 3d, specification 1st.—The testimony in support of this specification
is briefly as follows : Henry Johnson then medical storekeeper and acting medical
purveyor at Washington city, testifies (p. 1020) that he received a verbal order
and also a written order from the Surgeon General to urchase blankets from
J. P. Fisher. 1In the written order (p. 1021) dated November S, IPEE, the
Surgeon orders him to purchase of Mr. J. P, Fisher 3,000 blankets, at 85 90 per
pair, to be delivered to Surgeon G. E. Cooper, United States army, medical pur-
veyor at Philadelphia. Mr. Johnson, who nﬁ:lh-iilu:e.a:.i this order, states (p. 1322]
that the blankets so ordered were furnished by J. C. hﬂ[c(}mru & Co, a n;u
November 14, 1862, at $5 90 per pair; that he was acting purveyor in "i’ii':af -
ington city at the time, and had nothing to do with fixing the price of thel’uiunbi.ts ;
that shortly before this he received the verbal order (p. 1023) tnl pure maci ;u::l:
kets of McGuire & Fisher at 85 90 per pair; that there was 1'31 ¥ dﬂl;ﬂ sne |.] :s :
bal order given him; that (p. 1038) the blankets he was r.-rdureb 0 pure Et ‘
from J. P. Fisher were of cotton warp and weighed eight I{‘;‘,i““ o LEE’E I':r;l snst
enough to say upon this testimony in support of the speeil catmn_.m ]fﬂl‘dgi:' L
the letter and spirit of the law of the United ﬁtutys. here iz a wri hich of
the purchase of hospital stores at a specific price in a fictitious name, w - 5
h : iustified the government in preferring this speci
itself is a badge of fraud, and justi R 1 A iced by a contractor
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for supplies to adepartment. to have the written or &"ﬂ' mided g
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imprisonman, o sk oter pudient o e couee ol st
- ud was ;
(Statutes at Large, vol. 12, P"Egﬁ.} uljsit,.‘i‘;:;;nl;?y it wuﬁlﬂ aid him greatly in
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covering the fraud, and eluding the penalty ol the L 1'1 h the countract was
© the official record of the department Wlt]l_‘w ich_the pie i
fhat; by the oficia to be held responsible. It is urged by t
made, he was not the tlna:rsslnll o P. Fisher, in this official order was
defence that the use o .the Lo -d‘ w]':ethcr the record containg any tes-
a mere clerical error. It is Smiml‘mi The corrupt intent of the m:-:uae._& in
timony to justify any i lti'sl’i'ln;'nmher which is official although it 1s
iseuing this order s e h* Sur on General’s department, is a matter
illegal, and which is of record in the Surge
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uever to be proved by diveet testimony when not confessed, and can, thﬂl‘?fﬂl‘ﬂi
only be proved by the aet itself, a_ng the conduet of the aceused. It is no
answer to say that Mr. Thomas J. Fisher, the only member of the firm of J. C.
MecGuire & Co. who testified in this case, is a gentleman of gm.'gﬁ..'-l.'e utation,
Grant it if you please; the proof is that the blankets, under this order, were
Surnished by the firm of J. C. McGuire & Co.  Why the other member of this
firm did not come into court and explain this transaction, if’ explanation could
be given, does not appear by any testimony on this record. It s a rule which
will not be gquestioned by any just and enlightened tribunal charged with the
administration of this law that, for a contractor to furnish supplies at excessive
rates, is a fraud upon the government of his conntry within _tj;u meaning of that
law, and he cannot answer by saying that the government officer became a party
to the fraud by aszenting to his exorbitant demand.

That these blankets were excessive in price is evidenced by the testimony

of Mr. Paton, already referred to, that cotton warp blankets in thefall of 18562
were worth not more than 55 cents a pound, duty paid, which would have made
the price*of these blankets at the time this verbal order was given, say about
November 1, 1862, only $4 40. Instead of that, we find the Surgeon (General
issuing his order to purchase them at the exorbitant price of $5 90 per pair,
making upon the trangaction, over and above the market value of the blankets,
aud in favor of this J, P, Fisher alias J. C. McGuire & Co., the sum of §1 50
upon each pair of blankets, amounting in gross to the sum of $4,500. As will
be yemembered, Mr. Paton not only testified that he sold this kind of blankets
at that time himself, duty paid, to the government at that rate, but he says
(p. 1172) that the price in JITDE,. 1862, wag about 42 cents per pound for cotton
warp white blankets, and that the advance in October, 1861, was not more than
20 per cent, upon that rate, showing, unquestionably, that from 50 to 55 cents
was a full price for these blankets; and that he sold a detter article than the
Stephens blapkets shown in court, in October, 1862, to the government, at 55
cents per pound, duty paid. It is ne answer to this testimony of Mr. Paton,
which shows the genexal market value of this quality of blankets in the fall of
1562 as well as the price at which he sold a better guality than the Stephens
blankets, for the accused to bring Mr, Waterbury to testify to a single sale of blau-
kets which he thinks were slightly better, but of that he is not positive, than this
rough, coarse Stephens blanket shown in court, and which was sold in August,
1862, at $4 75 per pair, and in November, at $5 25. The important point is,
that Mr. Waterbury establishes the fact (p. 1465) that the lot of blankets, the
sale of which by Haines, Lord & Co. to Mr. Fisher, of this city, is testified to
by him, (p. 1467,) is the same quality of blankets shown to him in court and
itf;ntiﬁed by Brastow & Brown as the Stephens blankets sold in June, 1862,
so that the court are thus informed that these blankets which the Surgeon
(General was purchasing at 35 90 per pair from J. C. MeGuire & Co., were
the same style and quality of blanket that he had been purchasing from
Stephens in June, 1862, 'The court are asked, therefore, against the testi-
mony of Mr. Paton, which is clear and reliable as to the market value of these
blankets, and which shows that it could net have exceeded $£4 40 a pair, to
say that such blankets as those shown in court were honestly purﬁ]zued%}f the
Surgeon General on the 8th of November, 1862, at the high price of $5 90 per
pair. Here I rest the first specification, third charge.

Upon the second specification, third charge, the testimony shows that a large
amount of the blankets just deseribed and shown by the testimony of Water-
bury to have been similar to the worthlegs article now in court, and known as
the “ Stephens blanket,” was purchased by the Surgeon General himself of
J. C. McGuire & Co., and received hy Purveyor Johngon in the fall of 1862,
to the amount of $30,000, at the price of 85 90 per pair. The written order
of the Surgeon General, October 31, 1862, (p. 866,) to the medical purveyor
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at Washm_ on, commands him to purehasze of T. J. Fisher 52,000 pairs of
blankets 1i ¢ the sample deposited in the office of the Surgeon General, at
$5 90 per pair. Doctor Laub says (P, 867) that, up to the fall of 1862, Le
was pl.lrchaamg hlankﬂtﬂ from this same Thomas J. Fisher, of the"firm of J. (.
McGuire & Co., at various prices ranging from £3 50 to 85 per pair, and that
he did not at :m{ time pay him more than $5 per pair upon any contracts for
blankets made by him, and that the aecounts for all purchased from T'..J.
Fisher were made out in the name of J. C. McGuire & Co. Purveyor Johnson

states (pp. 1023-24) that the blankets that Le purchased of Fisher, under
the orders of the Surgeon’ General, were all of the same kind and same price ;

that the number of this kind of blankets veceived by him upon sueh orders, at
$5 90 per pair, from J. C. McGuire & (o, amounted to about $50,000; that
E’- 1027) this large purchase from J. C. McGuire & Co. of the same kind of
lankets as those specified in the order of November 8, 1862, were purchased
before November 8, 1862, and that (p. 1028) these purchases were made after
November 1, 1862, These blankets must have been purchased, the price thereon
being fixed by the Surgeon Generall and the verbal order given to Johnzon in
the month of November, although Johnson states that it was before the Sth of
November, for the reason that Johnson was not acting purveyor in Washington
until November, 1862. ' The quality of these blankets having been fixed botl
by the testimony of Johnzon, who swears that he unravelled them, and thaf
they were cotton wfn-%: and by ‘Waterbury, who was called to testify to a pur-
chase made by Mr. Fisher of eertain blankets in New York, of the samg
uality as the Stephens blanket here exhibited, the court are at no loss iv
getermining what style of blanket it was that the Surgeon General purchased
early in November, 1862, from this firm of J. C. MeGuire & Co. to the amount of
850,000, at the rate of 35 90 per pair, weighin_g, as .]'uh.nsnn states, :)xn]:-;-
eight pounds to the pair. That they were worth no more in October, 1562,
and before November 8, 1862, at which time Johnson saysithe purchase was
made, than $4'40 per pair, is testified to by Mr. Paton, who, as before remarked,
stated the genceral market value at from 50 to 55 cents per pound at that time,
and verified thiz opinion by gelling, even upon the government securifics ﬁ
October, 1862, a better blanket, free of duty, at 55 cents per pound, 'Evhmh woule
be $4 40 per pair for an eight-pound blanket. Upon this state of the Eﬂr!-li'!-., :I
is clear that the Surgeon General unlawfully made this large purchase, Ru s
indeed he has the right, against the express letter of the law, to select a“~h'l'ml;
chase all medical supplies and hospital stores, fixing the price at alnf-::xm ‘ 1:;1}1]1‘
sum, and binding the government by the contract. I repeat, therefore, u; 1
langnage of the specification, that he did “unlawfully” make tl1.|.~xI pure 5.-15-_.
Unﬁl;uhtedfy it was corruptly done, for in making the ayrangcmc:::tl ."", pf;; ; ;:1;
excessive price, to the injury of the publie revenue, which, as we hay & '4th'-]:|
hen done by a public officer, is a fraud upon the government, and is he :
ﬁMwﬁn law inﬂicta%lﬂ. Upon the purchase of these blankets the 4155“‘-%’36
fraud upon the government amounts, at 81 50 per pair, tuﬂ n:tmnt Eullf:? N
on the $5ﬂ,ﬂﬂﬂ' Purchnsé. and the +Ilke ::m';:z 2211 ;1121{:3 rg:lmllml;qu;mﬂﬂ rﬁ_m"
5 more. In this eourt it must OIS o 1
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the attention of the court is regpectfully asked to the testimony. Purveyor Laub
states (p. 854) that, in June, 1862, he was directed by the Surgeon {:;E]lﬂrﬂ’ to
make a contract (p. 858) with T\ J. Fisher, of the firm of J. C. M¢Guire & Co,,
for 10,000 irgn bedsteads at $4 50 each, which contract was made in pursuance
of this order of the accused ; that, on the 26th of September, 1862, the accused
gave him, as purveyor, a written order of that date to purchase of T. J. Fisher
5,000 iron bedsteads “on the terms specified in the contract between the Sur-
geon General and Mr. Fisher of June last.” No such contract as that referred
to in this order of September 26 is of record in the Surgeon General's office.
On the 26th of September, 1862, he made another contract, (p. 861,) by order
of the Surgeon General, with Thomas J. Fisher, for 5,000 iron bedsteads at
$4 50 each, upon which contract the witness indorsed at the time the words,
“This contract made by order of Surgeon General.”” He further states (p. 910)
that he purchased or received, under the orders of the aceused, from J. C. Me-
Guire & Co., from 18,000 to 25,000 iron bedsteads at different prices—83, 83 50,
$4, 84 50, and $5 each. Dr. Murray testifies (p. 552) that he published pro-
posals for iron bedsteads, and that in his letter of August 9, 15863, he stated to
the Surgeon General that he had reason to be pleased with the result of the

roposals; that by bringing Perot and Gardiner in competition with Fisher,
Ee obtained Fisher’s of the size recommended by the board at $2 95, instead
of $4 50, as they had demanded in the spring. The court will recollect that
Dr. Murray testified that he made one contraet, in 1863, with Fisher, for
these iron bedsteads, at 3 25 each; and the record shows that at the instance of
Fisher the Surgeon General interfered by a letter, which is of record, addressed
to Purveyor Murray, inquiring whether he did not make that contract with
Fisher, at £3 25, to continue through the year. Dr. Murray was a witness before
this court for several days. Why did not the accused, instead of attempting to
get rid of his written contract with these parties by a vain effort to prove the
contents of a newspaper advertisement which he did not produce, ask for Dr.
Murray’s testimony upon this subject? It was neither asked nor received
by him. The court will notice that Dr. Murray, by reason of the *com-
petition” mentioned in his letter to the Surgeon General, obtained at $2 95
each the same bedsteads for which this firm had demanded, and doubtless,
as appears by the testimony of Dr. Launb, received at $4 50, under the direct
order of the Surgeon General, and by his own contract referred to in his
order mentioned above. If this be the same bedstead—and Dr. Murray states it
is the same—for which they had demanded $4 50, and of the size recommended
by the board, it is very apparent that this firm reccived a most exorbitant price
through the favor of the Surgeon General, and in violation of the law of the
land, for the 20,000 or more bedsteads which they furnished under his
order, and by his own contracts, to Purveyor Laub. 'The certified exhibit from
the Surgeon General’s office shows that the patronage extended to this firm of
McGuire & Co. under the administration of the accused, and chiefly, if not
exclusively, furnished to the purveyor at Washington upon the dirvect orders of
the acensed, amounted to the sum of seven hundred thousand dollars!

The court will look carefully at the testimony of Mr. Fisher, and see whether
he testifies what price he actually received, under his contracts with the Surgeon
General, for the same bedsteads which he furnished Surgeon Murray at £2 95
each, and if there was any difference, (and he seemed to intimate that there
was a slight difference in some respeets,) and notice whether he was careful to
say what difference there was in the cost of making the one and the other, or
maintained a profound silence on that question, Admitting that there was some
difference, which is not very clearly ascertained, between the bedsteads veferved
to by Dr. Murray, for which they demanded $4 50, and those he purchased at
$2 95 under the force of competition, that difference must have been so slight
and unimportant in the original cost of production as to justify the conclugion
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- that the purchases of these bedsteads from this firm by the accused were at a

rate so excessive in price as to make the trangaction fraudulent on the part of
the accused in the exercize of his public trust. That it was clearly unlawful
cannot be doubted, unless, indeed, as has been mo

) re than onee said in the course
of this argument, and is in fact insisted upon b

1 ¥ the aceused in hiz defence, he
has the right to exercise in his own person all the

fnwers of selection and pur-
chase which the law has committed to the han

8 of the several medical pur-
veyors of the United States, and for the faithful

discharge of which the law
requires them to give boud, with approved gecurities, in such sums as the Sec-

retary of War may require, and which will secure the treasury of the conntry
-. inst the perpetration of frauds or the gross neglect of duty in the discharge
. of this trust. Enough has been said to show that the second specification,
~ third charge, is sustained by the testimony in manner and form as laid,

The defence of the aceused, though not so expressed in terms, is subs_tam:i'al]_
this : By reason of former regulations the accused may, “at his discretion,” dis-
regard and make null and void the 3d and 5th seetions of the act of 1 6th of
April, 1862, and may, therefore, in direct violation of the provisions of said act,

er all medical inspectors to report the result of their inspections directly to
the Surgeon General, instead of reporting, as required by that law, to the Medi-
cal Inspector General; and that by reason of the same premises the Surgeon
General may, “in his discretion,” and without giving bond or security, consti-
tute himself the sole medical purveyor of the United States, and as such, select
and purchase all medical supplies and hospital stores on such terms and from
such persons as he may see fit, and hold the same subject to issue only upon his
orders, notwithstanding the provisions of the aet of April 16, 1862. '

By discharging the accused, this court are asked so to rule the law as to gw;
their sanction to all these alleged and clearly proved violations by the accuse
of the act of April, 1862, and thereby sanction the like violations of l,im_,t law n;_
the future. Having by his acts clearly violated the express la}l.:erlqud llutﬁnti;
the act of 1862, it is certainly a novel way to attempt to justify his act by

ituti i ween the amounts of the lawful pur-
stituting a comparison, as he has done, bet ee _ B
chases made by Medical Purveyor Sat.terle; in thui city “f.;f Eﬁé mumm:[l ﬂP  he

Al 1n B
unlawful purchases made by the Sur_gt:m- iener S
ia, of Me(s & Co. and John Wyeth & Brother,
delphia, of the two houses of MeGuire & ( i doll
ing i illion three hundred thousand dollars.
amounting in the ageregate to qhout one m tpia il
i ﬂ.'l[: court can infer from

he fraud perpetrated on this immense sum : .
greall}' hEE[:l p[ruved on a few special items, and which shows a fraud of at least
twenty-five per cent, : Eat] -, and from no

Mai it plgaae the court : Impelled by t'lllfntil:}lt:ﬂ'::::l T\Fit?;u:ﬂ;ﬂa;::su I have

o - 1 ¥ i 2 ]
personal ill-will to the accused, b o m'{lﬂ within the short time allowed me,
endeavored to present as briefly . lmls?lssm;s and the plain rules of law which
the testimony hear!ng upon thf} SeVEr e ’ el rnarslisn jof Hikireniv b

i lication. The time allotted for ]l p R
BO¥EID. 143 applcaiion, short, that the numerous points invelve
the defence of the ac-:.:.use-:l lias been mF th:f-:th;m!l}' Yo ok bocn raviawed s
G5 ﬂ'w TR misf%m:?m asL I might desire. If the record lu:-. vo-
resented in as brief and compact fo foreign to the izgue, the record itself will
: if there be much in it quite foreign I R atter was
Ul el . as intimated by the defence, this ln:cIm.?ut ma 8
bear witness whether, as 2 If the valuable time of this tribunal has been
Introduced by e P med, the record will bear witness who, in the management
unnecessarily ﬂ“"““ffm »d most largely to that result. If ""'S“ﬂm:f? “fm e
thiz eause, contributed m e used, not stated in the speci-
i se-:-.’ut.inn of other _unhmtul m.t#:t of the acc SR 5
by the pro . wote show the HUER
Y £ ts of like character to 8 : SRt
fications, it was of acts o | interfering with the medical purveyors in th
aecused in violating Ehe law, _#:in 1]11_ 11 thf*; alone were * charged” by the law.
. oA ties with whic Y 3 W A g e
ﬁfiﬂﬂr]::ﬂ“;r:.lrg]f;ut:;elu}rl;ha accused from Tobias, and also from Cozzens, of w
s the
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